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At https://heidelbergkerlinfarm.wordpress.com/history/bolton-family/, says in part, “The Boltons are 
descendants of an ancient English family that owned landed estates located in both Lancashire and Yorkshire 
during the time of the conquest (The Norman conquest of England by William the Conqueror in 1066).  
Originally Bodelton, the family has traced their ancestry back to about 1135, and to the Lord of Bolton, 
representative of the Saxon earls of Murica.  Everard Bolton likely descended from the titled Bolton family.  
His parents, William and Mary and family, were Friends who suffered persecution with others on account of 
their religion (Quaker).  Because of this, Bolton decided to come to America and take part in William Penn’s, 
“Holy Experiment.”  Everard sailed to Pennsylvania on the ship Bristol Factor, with his wife and two children 
in 1682.  As a Quaker, he brought a certificate of removal dated August 19, 1682, with him.”  It’s unknown if 
he is related to our subjects, William James Bolton/Boulton or his brother, John Thomas Boulton. 
 
Bodeltune (Bolton), a location, is mentioned 28 times in the Domesday Book, a manuscript record of the "Great 
Survey" of much of England and parts of Wales completed in 1086 by order of King William the Conqueror.  
Bolton was a settlement in the hundred of Pocklington and the county of Yorkshire.  It had a recorded 
population of 2.7 households in 1086, putting it in the smallest 20% of settlements recorded in Domesday and is 
listed under 2 owners.  Boulton was a settlement in the hundred of Litchurch and the county of Derbyshire.  It 
had a recorded population of 5 households in 1086, putting it in the smallest 20% of settlements recorded in 
Domesday. 
 
At https://www.familysearch.org/wiki/en/Bolton_(city),_Lancashire_Genealogy, says “Bolton is a common 
Northern English name derived from the Old English bothl-tun, meaning a settlement with a dwelling, as 
opposed to a settlement without a fixed dwelling.  It was recorded as Bothelton in 1212, Botelton in 1257, 
Boulton in 1288, and Bolton after 1307. Later forms of Botheltun were Bodeltown, Botheltun-le-Moors, 
Bowelton, Boltune, Bolton-super-Moras, Bolton-in-ye-Moors, Bolton-le-Moors.  Also, at this website it says, 
“During the English Civil War (1642-1651), the people of Bolton were Puritans and supported the 
Parliamentarian cause.  A parliamentary garrison in the town was attacked twice without success, but on 28 
May 1644 Prince Rupert's Royalist army with troops under the command of the Earl of Derby attacked again.  
The attack became known as the Bolton Massacre in which 1,500 died, 700 were taken prisoner and the town 
plundered.”  More information on the Bolton Massacre, can be found at 
https://earlofmanchesters.wordpress.com/2012/05/28/on-this-day-in-1644-the-infamous-bolton-massacre/, 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Storming_of_Bolton, and http://dbpedia.org/page/Bolton_massacre.  
 
Religion was a major cause of the English Civil War.  It was part of a Europe wide conflict between Roman 
Catholicism and Protestantism.  At the start of his reign (1625) King Charles I, had married the Roman Catholic 
Henrietta Maria of France.  In London, King Charles I, is beheaded for treason on January 30, 1649.  Charles 
ascended to the English throne in 1625 following the death of his father, King James I.  In the first year of his 
reign, Charles offended his Protestant subjects by marrying Henrietta Maria, a Catholic French princess.  
Further reads on the English Civil War are at https://www.history.com/topics/british-history/english-civil-wars 
and http://www.bbc.co.uk/history/british/civil_war_revolution/choosingsides_01.shtml.  
 
At https://www.surnamedb.com/Surname/Boulton, says “This interesting name is of Anglo-Saxon origin, and is 
a dialectal variant of the locational name Bolton, so called for example: Bolton in Cumbria (near Wigton); in 

Ed Haynor, U.S.    &    David Boulton, Australia 

 



©  2 

 

Lancashire (near Urswick); also Bolton in Northumberland, Westmoreland and in the West Riding of 
Yorkshire. The name, in all cases derives from the Olde English pre 7th Century "bodltun", composed of the 
element "bodl" or "botl", a dwelling house or hall, plus "tun", an enclose or settlement; hence, "dwelling house 
or hall in the enclosure."  Locational surnames were usually acquired by a local landowner, or by the lord of the 
manor, and especially by those former inhabitants of a place who had moved to another area, and were 
thereafter best identified by the name of their birthplace.  The surname is first recorded towards the end of the 
12th Century (see below). There are two notable namebearers listed in the "Dictionary of National Biography:" 
one Richard Boulton (1697 - 1724), a physician, who published medical works; and one Matthew Boulton 
(1728 - 1809), an engineer who entered partnership with Watt, who he greatly assisted in the completion of the 
steam engine.  The first recorded spelling of the family name is shown to be that of Robert de Boulton, which 
was dated 1191, in "Early Yorkshire Charters," during the reign of King Richard I, known as "Richard the 
Lionheart," 1189 - 1199.  Surnames became necessary when governments introduced personal taxation.  In 
England this was known as a Poll Tax.  Throughout the centuries, surnames in every country have continued to 
"develop" often leading to astonishing variants of the original spelling. 
 
An excellent site about the Bolton/Boulton family is titled, Bolton Family Crest, Coat of Arms and Name 
History, at https://coadb.com/surnames/bolton-arms.html.  Although partially a commercial site, offering 
merchandize for sale, this site is very comprehensive in its sharing of the Bolton Surname Name Meaning, 
Origin, History, & Etymology.  One excerpt from this section says, “William Boulton was born c. 1175 AD in 
Boulton, Yorkshire, England.  His son, William Bolton or de Boulton, was born in Harewood, Yorkshire, 
England in 1196 AD.  He died in 1287 at the same location.  He married Emma Ruffus and had a daughter with 
her named Elizabeth.  Elizabeth was born in the same town in 1222 AD.  She married William Gasciogne V in 
1248 AD, and had a son with him named William VI.  Robert de Boultron was recorded in the Early Yorkshire 
Charters in 1191 AD.  Thomas de Bolton was recorded in Warwickshire, England in 1262 AD. The Hundred 
Rolls of 1273 AD, a census of Wales and England, known in Latin as Rotuli Hundredorum lists two bearers of 
this surname: Michael de Boulton (Yorkshire) and Thomas de Boulton (Lincolnshire).  Adam de Boultone was 
reeve of Dunfres, Scotland in 1287 AD. The Placita de Quo Warranto documents Ricard de Boulton in 
Northumberland c. 1292.  William fitz Geffray de Boiultone del counte de Edeneburk was documented in 1296 
AD. John of Boulton was a mason at the Castle of Linlithgow in Scotland in 1302 AD.  Robert Bolton was 
documented in Lancashire in 1371 AD. The Poll Tax Rolls of Yorkshire in 1379 AD also lists one bearer: 
Agnes de Bolton.”  It’s unknown if any of these persons with a Bolton-type surname are ancestrally related to 
our subjects, William James Bolton/Boulton or his brother John Thomas Boulton. 
 
A unique resource was identified on the overall Bolton/Boulton family is the publication called, The family of 
Bolton in England and America, 1100-1894, a study in genealogy. Embodying the Genealogical and 
biographical account of the family of Bolton, published in 1862 by Robert Bolton, rewritten and extended to 
date, by Henry Carrington Bolton, published in 1895, at 
https://www.seekingmyroots.com/members/files/G000851.pdf.  In this publication was found a section titled 
“Boltons in the City of London,” on pages 108-29, which may be the Bolton/Boulton ancestral line, since 
William J. Boulton was impressed into the Royal Navy while living in London in about 1807.  The very most of 
these Bolton/Boulton and other strange spellings of this family surname appear to be in the 16th and 17th 
centuries, about 150 years before our Bolton/Boulton subjects were born.  This section speaks to a Sir William 
Bolton who was mayor after the fire of London, which started Sunday, 2 September and lasted through 
Thursday, 6 September 1666, see https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Great_Fire_of_London.  Lord Mayor, Sir 
Thomas Bloodworth was mayor at the time of the fire and that Sir William Bolton, at 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/William_Bolton_(Lord_Mayor), replaced him, although it appears that Sir 
William was not very good at administrating finances of rebuilding London.  It is said at 
https://www.historyextra.com/period/stuart/great-fire-london-story-how-why-started-destroyed-capital-pudding-
lane-samuel-pepys/, Sir William Bolton, for whom everyone had high hopes after Bloodworth, was in charge of 
administrating the £12,000 raised.  It all ended in scandal, however, when he couldn’t account for £1,800 and 
had to resign.  Pepys, no fan of his predecessor, called Bolton’s actions “the greatest piece of roguery that they 
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say was ever found in a Lord Mayor.”  It goes on to say at 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/William_Bolton_(Lord_Mayor), “Bolton (who died in 1680) was a city of London 
merchant and a member of the Worshipful Company of Merchant Taylors.  In 1659 he was elected an alderman 
of the City of London for Castle Baynard ward and became Master of the Merchant Taylors Company.  Also in 
1659, he was colonel of the Blue Regiment.  He was one of the Sheriffs of London from 1660 to 1661 and was 
knighted on 11 October 1663. In 1666, he was elected Lord Mayor of London.  However, he was unable to 
account for £1,800 of the collections made for those who suffered in the Great Fire of London and was accused 
of cheating the poor of the City.  As a result, he was barred from attending the Court of Aldermen while an 
inquiry took place and eventually had to resign his seat. He became very poor and on 19 March 1677 the Court 
of Common Council voted him a pension of £3 per week.”  This same Bolton resource traces the 
Bolton/Boulton ancestry back to Lord Oughtred DeBolton (1080–1155), Bowland, Yorkshire, England.  
Whether this Sir William Bolton is an ancestor of our Bolton/Boulton family is unknown. 
 
One major reason why our Bolton/Boulton family may not be uniquely found in this resource is because of the 
name Bolton/Boulton itself. The meaning of Bolton/Boulton appears to be derived from a place or a settlement 
as stated above.  Knowing this, many surnames were derived from locations.  So, back in the day, if you lived in 
a Bolton/Boulton settlement, your name could have been John or Ann of (de) Bolton/Boulton, shortened 
meaning John or Ann Bolton/Boulton.  But just because of your name, doesn’t mean you are in fact an ancestor 
or descendant of our Bolton/Boulton ancestral family.  Only through DNA testing, from a confirmed William 
James or John Thomas Bolton/Boulton ancestor or descendant, could it be possible to be part of our 
Bolton/Boulton family.  So, it’s very possible, the main reason we may not be uniquely found in The family of 
Bolton in England and America, 1100-1894, publication is because we are not at all related to these 
Bolton/Boulton families. 
 
Genealogical and biographical account of the family of Bolton in England and America, deduced from an early 
period and continued down to the present time, by Robert Bolton, published in 1862, at 
https://babel.hathitrust.org/cgi/pt?id=wu.89058582750&view=1up&seq=7&skin=2021, is also an excellent 
resource on the Bolton/Boulton family, which is similar to The family of Bolton in England and America, 1100-
1894. 
 
The earliest Bolton/Boulton to America, that has been found is Johanna Bolton at 
https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:KCH2-FP5. In this resource, it states that Johanna came to 
Boston, Suffolk Co., Massachusetts, British Colonial America in 1592, aboard the ship Bosphorus from 
Liverpool, England.  She was 23 years old, born in Ireland in 1569.  Her occupation is listed as a spinster, and 
she is also listed as an invalid.  In this case, it’s very likely that Johanna was both an unmarried woman and a 
woman who spun thread and yarn, since spinster was listed under an occupation category. In the case of being 
an invalid, she was likely a person made weak or disabled by illness or injury. 
 
It appears that the first male Bolton/Boulton to America was Richard Boulton, who landed in Virginia in 1610, 
according to Passenger and immigration lists index: a guide to published arrival records of about 500,000 
passengers who came to the United States and Canada in the seventeenth, eighteenth, and nineteenth centuries, 
by William P. Filby and Mary K. Meyer, 1982-1985 Cumulated Supplements in Four Volumes Detroit, MI: 
Gale Research Co., 1985, Print (ISBN 0-8103-1795-8).  At https://www.wikitree.com/wiki/Boulton-408, 
suggests Richard was born about 1582.  Richard Boulton age 28 immigrated to Virginia in 1610 aboard the ship 
Mary & James.  Some additional information on this Richard Boulton and descendants can be found at 
https://sites.rootsweb.com/~tnsmith/oldpics/boulton_history.htm.  
 
The earliest ancestral link to William J. Boulton, we believe, would appear to be William’s great grandfather, 
Abraham Bolton, b. about 1718, Tottenham, Bedfordshire, England, d. 19 October 1764, Ulverston, Cumbria, 
England. 
 



©  4 

 

Generation Ancestor Generation Ancestor 

Ed Haynor 

Baseline (1) Sylvia Mildred Haynor, b. 1913, d 1983. 
David Boulton 

Baseline David Boulton, b. 1953. 
 (1) Lillian Alice Haynor, b. 1914, d. 1999.   
 (1) Paul LaVerne Haynor, b. 1916, d. 1998.   
 (1) Arthur Roy Haynor, b. 1918, d. 2006.   

 (1) Mary Elizabeth Haynor, b. 1920, d. 2005.   

 (1) Byron Connor Haynor, b. 1923, d. 2006.   

 (1) Betty Jane Haynor, b. 1925, d. 1975.   

 (1) Eleanor Ann Haynor, b. 1930, d. 2014.   

 (2) Lloyd Glenn Haynor, b. 1942, d. 2001.   

 (2) Edward Lee Haynor, b. 1950.   

Authors’ Comment: This baseline above also includes all the direct descendants of persons listed above, since they too would descend 

from the following ancestral lines. 
 

Parents William Roy Haynor 

BIRTH 28 OCT 

1889 • Easton, Ionia Co., 

Michigan 

DEATH 24 AUG 

1961 • Ludington, Mason 

Co., Michigan 

Spouse (1)  
Eleanor Lillian Metcalf 

BIRTH 29 SEPT 

1893 • Grayling, Crawford 

Co., Michigan 

DEATH 7 JAN 

1937 • Ludington, Mason 

Co., Michigan 

Married 1 August 1912, Holly, Oakland County, 

Michigan. 

Spouse (2):  
Helen Pearl Miller 

BIRTH 21 MAR 

1921 • Alger, Hardin Co., 

Ohio 

DEATH 23 NOV 

1998 • Fremont, Newaygo 

Co., Michigan 

Married 18 June 1939, Manistee, Michigan. 

Note: William Roy Haynor had three brothers, Lloyd Elton 

(1888-1945), Albert LaVerne (1891-1975), and Arthur 

Benjamin (1905-1975) and two sisters, Mildred Grace 

(1895-1973) and Alice Gertrude (1898-1987). They and 

their descendants would also descend from the following 

ancestral lines. 

 

 

Parents Clifford Allen Boulton 

BIRTH 15 JUNE 1918 • Orange, New South Wales, 

Australia 

DEATH 23 AUG 1993 • Orange, New South Wales, 

Australia 

Spouse: 
Margaret Clara McDonald 

BIRTH 4 NOV 1929 • Muswellbrook, New South 

Wales, Australia 

DEATH 28 JANUARY 2008 • Orange, New South 

Wales, Australia 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Clifford married Margaret Clara McDonald 26 April 1952. 

Pictured are Lachlan Turnbull, Clifford Boulton, Margaret 

McDonald, Murdoch McDonald & Flora (Peg) McDonald. 

 

Note: Clifford Allen Boulton had one sister, Thelma May 

Boulton, (1916-2014). They and their descendants would 

also descend from the following ancestral lines.  

 

William R. Haynor, 1912 

 

Eleanor L. Metcalf 1912 

 

Helen P. Miller abt. 1945 
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Grandparents Albert Clements Haynor 
BIRTH 29 AUG 1860 • Easton, Ionia Co., 
Michigan 
DEATH 11 OCT 1939 • Easton, Ionia Co., 
Michigan 

Spouse: 
Mary Elizabeth Conner (Connor) 
BIRTH 29 MAY 1868 • Easton, Ionia Co., Michigan 
DEATH 08 AUG 1951 • Easton, Ionia Co., Michigan 

Married 6 April 1887, Ionia County, MI. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Both Albert and Libbie are buried at the Easton Township 
Cemetery, Easton, Ionia County, Michigan. 

Grandparents Frederick Boulton 
BIRTH 13 April 1882 • Broadlands, March, New 
South Wales, Australia 
DEATH 24 October 1966 • Orange, New South 
Wales, Australia. 

Spouse: 
Maud Mary Miller 

BIRTH b. 17 October 1883 • March, Orange, New 
South Wales, Australia,  

DEATH d. 28 June 1967 • Orange, New South Wales, 
Australia. 

Frederick and Maud were married 15 April 1914 at Holy 

Trinity Cofe, Orange New South Wales, Australia. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Both Frederick and Maud are buried at the St. Phillips 
Anglican Cemetery, Orange, New South Wales, Australia.  

Great 

Grandparents 
Nancy L. Boulton 

BIRTH 04 NOV 

1835 • Palmyra, Lenawee 

Co., Michigan 

DEATH 12 FEB 

1892 • Easton, Ionia Co., 

Michigan  

Married 3 April 1859, Ionia County, MI.   

Spouse:  

Isaac Benjamin Haynor 

BIRTH 06 FEB 

1831 • Victory, Saratoga 

Co., New York 

DEATH 18 JUNE 

1913 • Easton, Ionia Co., 

Michigan 

Both Isaac and Nancy are buried at the Easton Township 

Cemetery, Easton, Ionia County, Michigan. 

Great 

Grandparents 
William Brittin Boulton 

BIRTH 20 February 

1843 • Binfield, Berkshire, 

England 

DEATH 22 December 

1919 • Orange New South 

Wales. 

Married 20 September 1865, Wollongong, New South 

Wales, Australia. 

Spouse: 

Emily Shipp 

BIRTH 22 August 

1846 • Waterbeach, Chesterton, 

Cambridge, England 

DEATH 1 March 

1923 • Orange, New South 

Wales, Australia. 

Both William and Emily are buried at St. Phillips Anglican 

Church Cemetery at March, Orange, New South Wales, 

Australia.  

 
Albert and Libbie Haynor, abt. 1934 

 
Isaac B. Haynor 

 
Nancy (Boulton) Haynor 

painting by Alice Haynor 

 

 

William B. Boulton 

Emily Shipp   

Frederick Boulton & Maud Mary Miller Wedding 

Picture 
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2nd Great 

Grandparents 
William James Boulton (Bolton) 

BIRTH 20 June 1796 • St. Mary, St. Marylebone 

Road, Marylebone, London, England. 

Christened, 31 Aug 1798 in St. Mary, St. Marylebone Road, 

Marylebone, London, England 

DEATH 21 April 1885 • Easton Twp., Ionia Co., 

MI.  

He died at the home of his daughter, Nancy (Boulton) Haynor, 

Easton, Ionia Co., MI. 

Spouse (1): 

Nancy L. Kelly 

BIRTH 6 or 16 May 1800-04 • Saint Albans, Franklin 

Co., Vermont 

DEATH 29 May 1856 • Palmyra, Lenawee Co., MI 

William and Nancy were married about 1820 in New 

York State. 

Spouse (2): 

Lavina Mabee 

BIRTH 22 July 1812 • Charlotteville, Norfolk, Ontario, 

British North America 

DEATH 4 May 1896 • Belding, Ionia, Michigan 

William and Lavina were married 8 April 1876, 

Orleans, Ionia Co., MI. 

2nd Great 

Grandparents 
John Thomas Boulton 

Birth 29 December 1811 • Binfield, Berkshire, 

England 

DEATH 14 January 1896 • Bay Road, North 

Sydney, NSW, Australia. 

Burial, 16 January 1896, St. Thomas Rest Park, 

Crows Nest, North Sydney Council, New South 

Wales, Australia. 

Spouse: 

Eliza Finbow 

BIRTH October 1817, Diss, Norfolk, England 

DEATH 19 September 1901, Dapto, New South Wales, 

Australia. 

Thomas married Eliza Finbow, 25 August 1839, 

Warfield, Berkshire, England. 

Eliza Finbow is believed to be the daughter of William 

Finbow and Mary Kemp. It appears that John Thomas 

Boulton, went by the name of Thomas Boulton. 

Note: Directly from above, William James Boulton and John Thomas Boulton were brothers.  Therefore, William James was the 2nd great 

granduncle of David Boulton and John Thomas was the 2nd great granduncle of Ed Haynor, making our authors 4th cousins to each other. 

William James Boulton Detail 

It was first thought that William James Boulton was born in London, 

England on Piccadilly St., 24 June 1798, confirmed through William’s 

U.S. Naturalization Record, dated 18 September 1833, Orleans Co., NY, 

at https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:QPRR-DZMV. 

But David Boulton who lives in Australia, a cousin of Ed Haynor, 

provided a baptismal record for William’s birth, listed as Willm, baptized 

August 1798, with his birth recorded as June 1796, a full two years before 

William’s U.S. Naturalization Record.  The baptismal record shows 

William’s parents as Abraham and Charlotte Bolton.  This record is from 

London, England, Church of England Baptisms, Marriages and Burials, 

Westminster, St. Marylebone, 1538-1812, found at ancestry.com. 

William Boulton’s parents were Abraham William Bolton, b. 19 June 

1773, d. 7 April 1847 and Charlotte Stocker, b. 1775, d. 12 April 1855. 

Abraham and Charlotte were married 29 May 1796, St. Mary’s, 

Willesden, Brent, Middlesex, England, as recorded at, London, England, 

Marriages and Banns, 1754-1921. It’s believed that both of William’s 

parents died in England. 

So, is this baptismal record, correct?  If so, why? The probable answer is 

that Abraham and Charlotte had a baby, approximately one month after 

they were married at St. Mary’s, since Charlotte was already pregnant.  

The authors have learned that marriage “in England from the fourteenth 

John Thomas Boulton Detail 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

John Thomas Boulton, b. 29 December 1811, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. 14 January 1896, Bay Road, North Sydney, NSW, 
Australia. Burial, 16 January 1896, St. Thomas Rest Park, Crows Nest, 
North Sydney Council, New South Wales, Australia. Thomas married 
Eliza Finbow, 25 August 1839, Warfield, Berkshire, England. Eliza, b. 
17 September 1820, Docking, Norfolk, England, d. 19 September 1901, 
Dapto, New south Wales, Australia. Eliza Finbow is believed to be the 

 

Thomas Boulton 

1811-1896 

 

Eliza Finbow 

1820-1901 
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to nineteenth centuries was a mess.  The church asserted that mere verbal 

consent, freely given and duly witnessed, constituted a binding 

marriage,” see 

https://doi.org/10.1093/acprof:oso/9780198226512.003.0005. Knowing 

this, there apparently were English customs regarding marriage validity, 

other than a church wedding. At  

https://www.phil.muni.cz/angl/thepes/thepes_02_02.pdf, it says, 

“Although Puritanism had a considerable influence on people’s thinking, 

the gap between theory and reality was quite large. This can be 

demonstrated by the fact that 25 per cent of seventeenth-century 

Englishwomen had already been pregnant at the time of the wedding.  

This was not judged as harshly as we might expect.  Being able to have 

children was a matter of an absolute importance in a woman, so having 

sex before marriage was the only way to ‘confirm’ this ability.” Also, at 

this site it says, “the main purpose of marriage was having children. It 

was not only ensuring an heir that was significant; the husband could 

not act as the head of a family until his marriage had produced an 

offspring, so it was also a matter of social prestige.  For a woman, the 

whole thing was even more serious. Infertility was perceived not only as 

a social defect, but as a downright punishment by God.”  It appears 

Abraham and Charlotte were part of this 25% and used William’s 

baptismal year as William’s birth date to avoid any adverse effect to 

William, his siblings, and his own family, later in life.  If William was 

born a full two years before the recorded date on his Naturalization 

Record, as this baptism has recorded, William probably never knew of his 

actual birth date. 

The cousin David Boulton from above, is the direct descendant of Thomas 

Boulton, William’s brother, born 29 December 1811, Binfield, Berkshire, 

England, died 14 January 1896, North Sydney, New South Wales, 

Australia.  Because of this Thomas being born 15 years after William, 

they likely never knew each other, since in about 1807, William was 

impressed into the British Navy, before Thomas was born (see right hand 

section), unless of course, they somehow corresponded through letters 

between the U.S. and England and later between the U.S. and Australia. 

At 

https://www.napoleon.org/en/history-

of-the-two-empires/articles/the-british-

navy-1793-1802/, says this about the 

Impress Service or pressgang 

regarding the British Navy, 

“Founded long before the 

Napoleonic wars, the Impress 

service came into high profile 

during the wars with 

Revolutionary France. 

The word impress was derived from the old French word ‘prest’, 

modern ‘prêt’ or loan/advance, in other words, each man 

‘impressed’ received the loan of a ‘shilling’ (that is he paid the 

‘King’s shilling’ to enlist) and became a ‘(im)prest man’. The 

service was present in every major port in the kingdom. The 

daughter of William Finbow and Mary Kemp. It appears that John 
Thomas Boulton, went by the name of Thomas Boulton. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Obituary for Thomas Boulton at 
https://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/238698894 – “BOULTON, 
January 14th, 1896, at his late residence, Waverton Cottage, Bayrd., 
North Sydney, the beloved husband of Eliza Boulton, aged 85 years.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Also, at 

https://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/132352685?searchTerm=Fi

nbow, lists an obituary for Eliza Boulton as follows: 

“New South Wales Death 8227/1901 BOULTON ELIZA - - SARAH - 

ALBION PARK * 19 September 1901, The Sydney Morning Herald - 

Wed 25 Sep 1901 p.1 Deaths. BOULTON - September 19, 1901, at her 

daughter's residence, Dapto, Eliza, beloved wife of the late Thomas 

Boulton, of North Sydney, aged 83 years. At rest.” 

More information can be found on this Boulton family at 

https://forum.familyhistory.uk.com/threads/bolton-boulton-families-of-

berkshire-england.35467/.  

1851 United Kingdom Census - HO107 Piece 1694 Folio 445 Page 21 
for Thomas & Eliza Bolton 
Civil Parish: Binfield, County: Berkshire, Address: Parkfold Poor 
House, Village of Binfield. 

 Thomas Bolton Head, age 39, Farm Labourer, Wortham, Suffolk. 
 Eliza Bolton Wife, age 35, Wortham, Suffolk. 

 

 

Thomas Bolton/Boulton 

BIRTH 29 DECEMBER 

1811 • Warfield, Berkshire, 

England 

DEATH 14 JANUARY 

1896 • Bay Road, North 

Sydney, New South Wales, 

Australia 

 

 

Eliza (Finbow) Boulton 

BIRTH OCTOBER 

1817 • Diss, Norfolk, England 

DEATH 19 SEPT 

1901 • Albion Park, New South 

Wales, Australia 
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service’s offices were called ‘Rendezvous’ with a Regulating 

Officer in charge, and he hired local hard men as ‘gangers’. 

These thugs would thus roam the countryside attempting to 

‘encourage’ men aged between 18 and 55 to join the navy. No-

one was safe from the gang, and often the only escape route 

when captured was to bribe the gang or to join it. A preferred 

target for the pressgang was the merchant navy, so it was not 

infrequent to find special hiding places on merchant vessels. 

Also, the return of prisoners of war from France was also seen 

as the perfect moment to impress crewmen, such that very often 

the returning POWs were turned round and pressganged even 

before they set foot once more on home soil. The captains of 

merchant vessels frequently took pity on those they were 

repatriating and tried to let them land in places far from the 

ports and the pressgangs.” 

William’s U.S. Naturalization Record, says that he arrived in the town of 

Madrid, St. Lawrence County, NY, on either the 15th or 16th of August 

1811. 

Madrid, NY, is about nine miles from the St. Lawrence River, dividing NY 

State and Canada.  During the War of 1812, Madrid, due to its proximity 

to Canada, developed a town militia, the "South Madrid Militia," see 

History of Madrid, NY, at  http://history.rays-place.com/ny/madrid-

ny.htm and History of St. Lawrence Co., New York, at 

https://ia800207.us.archive.org/14/items/cu31924028833015/cu3192402

8833015.pdf. 

The aforementioned Naturalization Record also says that since our 

William’s arrival in the U.S., in 1811, he’s lived in the U.S., ever since, 

with 17 of those years, living in Orleans Co., NY, specifically in the towns 

of Gaines and Carlton and holds a valuable farm by contract in Carlton. 

In the publication “Landmarks of Orleans County, New York,” Syracuse, 

N.Y.: D. Mason & Co., published in 1894, there are two references to 

William J. Boulton. In Chapter XXIV, THE TOWN OF CARLTON, on 

page 627, it says, “The south part, 60 acres, of lots 1, 3 and 5, sec. 2, was 

taken up by Barnabas Lowell July 16, 1824.  It was articled to William J. 

Boulton, December 6, 1833, and deeded to Jacob Lawrence August 6, 

1836.”  On page 628, it says, “The middle part of lots 1, 3, and 5, sec. 4, 

100 acres, was deeded to the First Congregational church in the town of 

Gaines April 25, 1822.  The south part of lots 1, 3, and 5, sec. 40 acres, 

was taken up by William J. Boulton, July 14, 1821.  It was articled in two 

parcels to Heman Logan and Samuel Hale July 26, 1833; and to John H. 

Nichols December 3, 1834.”  So, it would appear that William, was in 

Gaines in July 1821 and property he owned in July and December 1833, 

he deeded away in December 1834 and August 1836 respectively.  So, it’s 

possible that his daughter Nancy who was born in 1835, was born in New 

York State, rather than Michigan, unless land deed sales were conducted, 

at least in part, through the mail back in those days. 

Although the Boulton Family has gone primarily by the Bolton or Boulton 

surname in England, William’s name was recorded as Boulton on the 

Naturalization Record.  As stated in an undated letter by Mary Elizabeth 

 Rose Bolton, Daughter, age 12, Scholar, Binfield, Berkshire. 
 Abraham Bolton, Son, age 10, Scholar, Binfield, Berkshire. 
 William Bolton, Son, age 8, Scholar, Binfield, Berkshire. 
 Mary Bolton, Daughter, age 6, Scholar, Binfield, Berkshire. 
 Joseph Bolton, Son, age 5, Binfield, Berkshire. 
 James Bolton, Son, age 3, Binfield, Berkshire. 
 Thomas Bolton, Son, age 1, Binfield, Berkshire. 
 Charlotte Bolton, Mother, Widow age 76. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Emigration to Australia 

The Thomas Boulton family departed Liverpool, England, 21 October 
1856, on the Matoaka (some spell it Mataoka). The voyage took 95 days 
and they landed at Sydney Cove on the 22 January 1857. They were 
bounty immigrants, the total cost of the bounty was 13 pounds 4 
shillings and 9 pence per person. Thomas occupation was given as 
Stonemason and Labouror, daughters Rosehannah and MaryAnn were 
House Servants; sons Abraham & William were Labourers. In 1857, 
the Boultons were living at Primrose Villa at the time of Rosehannah’s 
marriage. In 1860 Family living at Avondale Thomas and Eliza owned 
land which was part of the Marshall Estate and is still listed as Lot 1, 
situated in the expressway turn off to Dapto "In New South Wales, 
assisted immigrant records may also be supplemented by a series of 
records known as the Immigration Deposit Journals. These are a 
record of the monies paid towards the cost of an immigrant's fare and 
can, once again, provide some very interesting clues. These records 
show, for example, that Thomas Boulton (note the spelling) paid monies 
towards the cost of the voyage of the Jones family. The Journals show a 
distinct discrepancy in the ages of James and Mary Jones which are 
stated as 38 and 48 respectively. The family is also described, on this 
occasion, as being of Vinfield, Berkshire while a Mr. J. Lawrence of the 
same place is listed as 'some person of note to whom reference can be 
made respecting the emigrants'. This record also helps to add further 
family members to the picture by stating that Thomas Boulton had also 
sponsored a William Jones who also travelled on the Sirocco. Ref In 
New South Wales, assisted immigrant records may also be 
supplemented by a series of records known as the Immigration Deposit 
Journals. These are a record of the monies paid towards the cost of an 
immigrant's fare and can, once again, provide some very interesting 
clues.” 
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(Conner) Haynor, William added a letter “u” to his surname once in the 

U.S. and that he was born on Piccadilly St. in London. 

Mary Elizabeth (Conner) Haynor, also stated in her letter that: 

 
1 William’s father was a landlord in Lincolnshire, England, 

 When quite young, William was impressed aboard a Man-of-War 

England gun boat (known as a 74) at a wharf in London to be a sailor.  

He was on this ship for four years. 

 When making his way to New York he hired out as a farm hand to 
2Barney Kelly (Kelley).  Barney was thought to have been a bodyguard of 

George Washington, as told to his grandson, Albert Clements Haynor.  

Barney Kelly (Kelley) was tall of Scottish heritage, about 6’ 2” and that 

Nancy Hunter, Barney’s wife’s maiden name, was English. William 

Boulton married their daughter Nancy L. Kelly.  (See the publication, 

“Was a Haynor Family Ancestor a Bodyguard to George Washington?” 

at http://migenweb.org/ionia/meat/HaynorBodyguard.pdf.  

 
3 About 1825 they moved to Lenawee County, Michigan near a small 

village which he named Palmyra. William J. Boulton was commissioned 

Captain by Governor John Barry (Michigan) the 25th of April 1842.  He 

trained soldiers and his training on the gun boat was military tactics and 

drilling.  He was known as Capt. Boulton for years. 

 
4 William J. Boulton died in 1881 (actually 1885), at the home of his 

daughter Nancy (Boulton) Haynor in Easton, Ionia Co., Mich. 

 Notes: At the Internet site at 

http://www.migenweb.org/lenawee/communities_old.html, says, “PALMYRA: 

Founded in 1827 by Thomas B. Goff and named after his hometown in New 

York. The first postmaster was Alexander R. Tiffany. The post office opened 

March 27, 1833.” We have no reason to believe that this finding is not true, 

since no other findings can dispute it. 

 Although another Internet site named “From Palmyra, NY to Palmyra, MI, 

Our Migrating Ancestors,” at 

https://wayne.nygenweb.net/palmyra/palmyrami.html, seems to confirm that 

William J. Boulton was a migrating ancestor, but apparently not an original 

one, since his name is not listed from those who came as early as 1823, up 

through the 1830 Lenawee County, MI census, since he is not listed in this 

census at http://kent.migenweb.org/census/1830/lenawee.html.  Unfortunately, 

his name in the Internet publication from above is misspelled as “Borilton 

William J.” 

 Our William J. Boulton also can’t be found in the 1840 Census either, but 

somehow the “From Palmyra, NY to Palmyra, MI, Our Migrating Ancestors,” 

publication found him somehow/somewhere. Perhaps it was the William 

Boulton in Hillsdale County, dated 8/2/1837. Hillsdale County is adjacent to 

Lenawee County. At the Bureau of Land Management at 

https://glorecords.blm.gov/details/patent/default.aspx?accession=MI1150__.109

&docClass=STA&sid=uvdy5qnz.kzj#patentDetailsTabIndex=0, the map of this 

property is in Hillsdale County, but it’s right on the border of Lenawee County 

and who knows what the county maps looked like back then. 

 In the 1850 U.S. Census at https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:MF8V-

LJY, William, wife Nancy, children George, Nancy, Wallace, and Lucious are 

found. William is listed as being born in England, wife Nancy in Vermont, George 

Actual passenger list of the Thomas Bolton/Boulton family 
NRS5316/4_4793/Matoaka_22 Jan 1857/found at 
https://indexes.records.nsw.gov.au/ebook/list.aspx?series=NRS5316&it
em=4_4793&ship=Matoaka 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Matoaka 

There exists a 20-page document called the “Diary of James Ball, 
Voyage of Emigration, England to Australia aboard the Matoaka, 
1856-57.” The authors intended to give a summary of some important 
perceptions and events, as recalled by James Ball, age 43, an emigrant 
passenger aboard the Matoaka, from Wednesday, October 15, 1856, 
which ship left Liverpool, England on Monday, October 20, that arrived 
in Sydney Harbor, Australia on January 22, 1857. But the authors have 
found their attempt to give a summary, find it impossible because of the 
nature of the diary. There’s just too much important information to 
share, which doesn’t give the diary any justice. If interested in reading 
the diary, please send an email message to dnboulton@bigpond.com, 
and a copy will be emailed to you. 

The authors have also contacted a website dedicated to the Matoaka 
found at https://www.wikitree.com/wiki/Space:Ship_Matoaka.  The 
authors have asked the manager of this website if they would like a copy 
of this diary to post or link there. As of this date, the authors have not 
heard back from this Wikitree site. 

Actual passenger list of the James Ball family 
NRS5316/4_4793/Matoaka_22 Jan 1857/found at 
https://indexes.records.nsw.gov.au/ebook/list.aspx?series=NRS5316&it
em=4_4793&ship=Matoaka 

 

 

 

 

 

The actual ship’s list of passengers on the Matoaka can also be found at 
https://indexes.records.nsw.gov.au/ebook/list.aspx?series=NRS5316&it
em=4_4793&ship=Matoaka. 

According to http://oceans1.customer.netspace.net.au/austrun-
wrecks.html, the “Matoaka. Emigrant ship, wood, 1092 tons. Built 
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in New York, and Nancy, Wallace and Lucious born in Michigan. So, as child 

Nancy was born in Michigan, with her age listed as 14, she would have had to be 

born no later than 1836. So, based on this census, verifies William J. Boulton’s 

presence in Palmyra, Lenawee, Michigan, no later than 1836, confirming the 

work of “From Palmyra, NY to Palmyra, MI, Our Migrating Ancestors,” 

Interestingly, the 1850 U.S. Census has William’s name listed as William D. 

Boulton. When you look at the actual handwritten census page, William’s 

middle initial is very hard to read, actually, unreadable. 

 More information on Palmyra Township, Lenawee County, MI can be found at 

http://genealogytrails.com/mich/lenawee/twppalmyra.html, 

http://www.migenweb.org/lenawee/,  

According to the Ancestors of Erin Boulton at, 

https://www.genealogy.com/ftm/b/o/u/Erin  -Boulton/GENE2-0007.html, 

William J. Boulton, “Came from England via Adelaide, Australia in 1812 

on a British Man of War (known as a 74); deserted with 5 others upon 

landing at Quebec. Enlisted with USA in war of 1812. After the war, he 

worked at St. Catherine, Ontario, then moved to New York and served as 

a captain in the NY Militia. Moved to Lenawee Co., Michigan in 1835.” 

The author notes that St. Catherine, Ontario, is likely St. Catharines, 

Ontario, which is located on the southwest corner of Lake Ontario, about 

as far as a ship could travel on the St. Lawrence River at that time.  The 

distance from St. Catharines, Ontario to Niagra Falls, NY, is about 14 

miles.  But the distance from St. Catharines, Ontario to Madrid, NY, as 

William stated in his 1833 Naturalization Record is about 312 miles and 

that Madrid is right across the river from Quebec, as Erin Boulton states 

above.  The author believes that it would be hard to understand why 

William would go back into Canada, for any reason, since he would be 

putting his life in jeopardy, since he would be reported in Canada as a 

deserter.  

Although the HMS Victory is a 104-gun first-rate ship of the line of 

the Royal Navy, ordered in 1758 and launched in 1765. She would, 

more or less, look like a larger size 74-gun Man-O-War. The HMS 

Victory is best known for her role 

as British Lord Nelson's flagship at 

the Battle of Trafalgar on 21 October 

1805. 

After 1824, the HMS Victory was 

relegated to the role of harbor ship. 

In 1922, she was moved to a dry 

dock at Portsmouth, England, and 

preserved as a museum ship. She has 

been the flagship of the First Sea Lord since October 2012 and is the 

world's oldest naval ship still in commission, with 244 years' service 

as of 2022. More on the HMS Victory can be found at 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/HMS_Victory.  

In regards to William enlisting in the War of 1812, a William J. Bolton 

was listed at 

https://www.history.navy.mil/content/history/nhhc/research/library/resear

1853. Lbd 198.8 x 37.9 x 22.3 ft. Purchased by Shaw, Savill and Albion 
Company in 1867. Captain Stephens. Left Lyttelton, New Zealand, for 
London on 13 May 1869, with forty-five passengers, including thirteen 
women and eighteen children, a crew of thirty-two, and a cargo of wool 
and gold. She was not seen again, and it was thought she had probably 
struck an iceberg or been destroyed by fire. In 1868 she carried a 
consignment of thrushes, blackbirds, sparrows, finches and robins for 
New Zealand; their descendants are now legion.” 

It's believed Thomas and Eliza had the following children: 

i. Rose Hannah Boulton, b. 12 June 1839, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. 19 February 1938, Drummoyne, Canada Bay 
City, New South Wales, Australia. Married John Mull Murley 
(1829-1911), 27 October, 1857, Dapto, New South Wales, 
Australia. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Five Generations 

(Pictured above in the center), Mrs. R. (Rose Hannah) Murley, of Warfield, 
Dapto (in the Illawarra district), who is 85 years of age, is a native of 
Berkshire, England. She came to Sidney with her parents in 1857 and went 
to live at Dapto. On her marriage she removed to Ballarat. She arrived 
there the day the Nil Desperandum gold nugget was found, and later saw 
the Welcome Nugget, which was exhibited at Ballarat for some time. 
Returning to New South Wales, she again settled in the Illawarra district, 
where she still resides. She is the mother of 12 children – 10 sons and two 
daughters – 27 grandchildren, 21 great-grandchildren, and one great-
great-grandchild. The five generations represented in the photograph are: 
Mrs. Murley; Mr. William J. Murley (son) of Belmore street, Burwood; the 
latter’s eldest daughter, Mrs. H. King, of Angel street, Burwood’ Mrs. 
King’s eldest daughter, Mrs. P. Scott, of Strathfield; and Mrs. Scott’s baby, 
who is Mrs. Murley’s great-great grandchild. 

Note: Rose Hannah may have been blind. It’s believed that she used to make 
marble bags for the missionaries to give to children. She was a staunch member 
of the Presbyterian church at Dapto and was supposed to have been a founding 
member. Rose Hannah was described as a tiny lady who was most always 
dressed in black. She wore a little black beaded bonnet with strings tied under her 
chin. She outlived many of her children. 

HMS Victory in Portsmouth, 1900 
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ch-guides/z-files/zb-files/zb-files-b.html, in ZB (Personnel) Files in the 

Navy Department Library.  This record is for the 19th Century (1800s).  

Whether this is our William J. Boulton is unknown. 

At 

http://www.migenweb.org/lenawee/1

812.html, lists William J. Boulton as 

a Veterans of the War of 1812, 

buried in Lenawee Co, Michigan. 

Also at 

https://www.findagrave.com/memori

al/127783607/william-j-boulton, and 

http://www.migenweb.org/lenawee/1

812.html it says that William J. 

Boulton was a veteran of the War of 1812. 

 

Since our William previously was in the British Royal Navy, this author 

is assuming that William’s involvement in the War of 1812, likely would 

have been with naval engagements, but so far, there is no proof of that. 

A good source of history on the U.S. Navy and the War of 1812 can be 

found at https://military-historian.squarespace.com/blog/2015/1/4/the-

war-of-1812-the-us-navy. 

At Familysearch.com lists 22 men with the surname Boulton who were in 

military service in the War of 1812, none with a first name of William. 

Although there is one “William Bolton” listed as a private in Swift's 2nd 

regiment New York militia at 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:Q29V-R3BW. Philetus 

Swift (1763-1828) was in command of the 2nd regiment, listed as a 

lieutenant colonel. Later in life, Swift became a state senator from the 

western district NY State. It is believed that Swift had at least some 

involvement with actions along the American-Canadian border, which is 

categorized in three sectors, southwestern Ontario adjacent to the Detroit 

River, the Niagara Frontier (including the adjacent coast lines of Lake 

Erie and Lake Ontario in Upper Canada, New York and Pennsylvania), 

and the St. Lawrence River (including locations in Lower Canada and 

New York). 

At 

https://commons.emich.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=2298&context=t

heses, describes Lieutenant-Colonel Philetus Swift and that his regiment 

consisted of 470 men and was an army on the Niagara during the War of 

1812. Swift’s regiment was responsible for defending a 22- mile frontier. 

So, it’s possible that this private William Bolton is our William J. Boulton 

since this is approximately where he lived. 

In the “Memoirs of Lenawee County, Michigan: from the earliest 

historical times down to the present, including a genealogical and 

biographical record of representative families in Lenawee County,” 

Richard Illenden Bonner, editor. [Vol. 2], at 

https://quod.lib.umich.edu/m/micounty/BAD0968.0001.001?view=toc, 

under the biography of George Boulton, son of William J. Boulton, on 

pages 50-51, says in part, “George Boulton, one of the prosperous 

Rose Hannah and John Murley likely had the following children: 
 

 John Thomas Murley (1858–1858). 
 

 William John Murley, b. 14 November 1859, Ballarat 
East, Victoria, d. 5 July 1928, Burwood, New South 
Wales, Australia. Married  Florence Eva Willmott, 1879, 
Molong, New South Wales, Australia. Florence b. 23 
February 1861, Burrundulla, Paddington, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 9 July 1933, Strathfield, New South 
Wales, Australia. Children: 
- Hester Louise Murley (1879–1977) 
- Leslie William Murley (1884-1958) 
- Florence May Murley (1889-1976) 

 

 

 Charles Henry Murley, b. 27 August 1861, Wollongong, 
New South Wales, Australia, d. 1937, Randwick, New 
South Wales, Australia. Married Ethel May Lawless, 
1905, St. Leonards, New South Wales, Australia. Ethel, 
b. 1877, St. Leonards, New South Wales, Australia, d. 1 
August 1917, Crows Nest, Sydney, New South Wales, 
Australia. Children: 
- Stewart Henry Murley (1907-1975) 
- Harold J. Murley (1912-1932) 

 
 

 Edward J. Murley, b. 1863, Wollongong, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 1931, Granville, New South Wales, 
Australia. No known spouse. 

 

 Frederic Murley (1865–1951), b. 12 October 1865, 
Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia, d. 29 August 
1951, Bowral, New South Wales, Australia. Married 
Alice Manon, 7 April 1909, Robertson, New South 
Wales, Australia. Alice b. 1891, Benevolent Asylum, 
Sydney, Australia, d. 3 June 1971, Bowral, New South 
Wales, Australia. Children: 
- Dudley Murley (1909-1990) 
- Doris Roseanna Murley (1912-1995) 
- Jonathan Murley (1912-1987) 
- Phyllis May Murley (1914-2012) 
- Alan Murley (1917-1917) 
- Raymond Edwin Murley (1919-1973) 
- Marjorie Amy Murlie (1922-1979) 

- Joan Helen Murley (1927-1975) 
 

 Sydney Murley, b. 1867, 
Wollongong, New South Wales, 
Australia, d. 1934, Mayfield, 
Newcastle, New South Wales, 
Australia. Married Ethel 'Birdie' 
Llewellyn, abt. 1908, Casino, 
New South Wales, Australia. 
Birdie, b. abt. 1881, Grafton, 
New South Wales, Australia, d. 
abt. 1953, Hurstville, New South 
Wales, Australia. Children: 
- Norman J. Murley (1908-1908) 
- Stewart L. Murley (1909-1909) 
- Linda R. Murley (1911-2006) 

 

 

Ethel 'Birdie' Llewellyn 
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farmers of Palmyra township (Lenawee County, MI), was born in 

Orleans county, New York, March 14, 1832.  He is the son of William J. 

and Nancy (Kelly) Boulton. the former of whom was born in London, 

England, June 24. 1798, and the latter at St. Albans, VT of scotch 

parentage in 1800 (or 1803). (William J. Boulton) came from Adelaide, 

Australia to America in 1812 on board a British man-of-war, known as a 

seventy-four, and he and five others deserted as soon as the vessel landed 

at Quebec. He then made his way to the lower end of Lake Ontario and at 

once enlisted in the States service in the War of 1812. For a time after the 

war he worked at Saint Catherine, Ontario, then went to New York, 

where he engaged in agricultural pursuits, and while there served as a 

captain in the New York militia. In 1835 he moved west to Lenawee 

county, Michigan, and purchased the property where the son (George) 

now resides, clearing and improving the same. He remained on the farm 

until his death, which occurred in 1886 (21 April 1885 at the home of his 

daughter Nancy Boulton (Haynor) Easton Township, Ionia County, MI), 

just thirty years after his wife’s demise.” 

In the early development of Michigan, it was common for early settlers 

moving west from eastern American states as well as eastern Canada, 

starting in the early 1800s to settle in Michigan using federal and state 

land grants. Michigan was a public-domain state where unclaimed land 

was surveyed, then granted or sold by the government through federal 

and state land offices. The first sale of a piece of land from the 

government was called a land patent and the first owner of the land was 

called a patentee. Later, when the land was sold or mortgaged by private 

owners, the document was called a deed. The first federal and state 

transactions were recorded and the paperwork kept at the federal and 

state level, while all future transactions were recorded at the office of the 

county register of deeds. No land grants at 

https://glorecords.blm.gov/search/default.aspx, can be found for William 

J. Boulton in Lenawee Co., MI. One can be found for a William Boulton 

in Hillsdale County, dated 8/2/1837. An additional land grant can be 

found for a William Boulton in Allegan County dated, 5/1/1839. Whether 

any of these grants are for our William J. Boulton is unknown. Two land 

grants were found in Lenawee County for a Thomas Boulton, dated 

9/10/1834 and for George Boulton, dated 10/6/1835. Who Thomas and 

George Boulton are, is unknown. It’s possible that William J. Boulton, 

bought property from one of these early Boulton men, as he likely made 

the move from NY State to Michigan near 1835 for his daughter Nancy L. 

(Boulton) Haynor, to be born in Palmyra, Lenawee County in November 

1835. 

William Boulton’s parents were Abraham William Bolton, b. 19 June 

1773, d. 7 April 1847 and Charlotte Stocker, b. 1775, d. 12 April 1855.  

It’s believed that both of William’s parents were born and died in 

England. 

Believed children of William James Boulton and Nancy L. Kelly (Kelley) 

Boulton were: 

- Mervyn Ross Murley (1914-1961) 
- Ernestine Murley (1920-1920) 
- Arthur Murley (1921-1921) 

 

 

 Arthur Herbert Murley, b. 13 June 1869, Dapto, New 

South Wales, Australia, d. 1938, Randwick, New South 

Wales, Australia. No known spouse. 
 

 Eliza Finbow Murley (1871–

1964), b. 15 July 1871, 

Avondale, New South Wales, 

Australia, d. 1964, Ryde, 

New South Wales, Australia. 

Married Alfred Edward 

Hahm, 1 July 1891, Dapto, 

New South Wales, Australia. 

Alfred, b. 24 January 1861, 

Stanley, Victoria, Australia, 

d. 15 November 1898, St. 

Leonards, New South Wales, 

Australia.  

Children: 

- Lilian Emily Hahm (1892-1981) 

- Austin Alfred Hahm (1894-1970)  
  

 

 Nattie Grace Murley (1874–1968), b. 29 April 1874, 

Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia, d. 17 July 

1968, Ashfield, New South Wales, Australia. Married 

Charles Slip, date unknown. Charles, birth and death 

dates unknown. Children: 

- Edna Grace Slip (1912-1995) 

- Una Rose Slip (1916-1994) 

- Gordon Eric Slip (1918-2010) 
 
 

 

 Albert Ernest Murley,b. 7 July 1876, Wollongong, New 

South Wales, Australia, d. 1919, Lismore, New South 

Wales, Australia. No known spouse. 
 

 

 Walter Murley (1879–1944), b. 1 October 1879, 

Wollogong, New South Wales, Australia, d. 5 August 

1944, Byron Bay, New South Wales, Australia. Married 

Elsie Gray, 1911, Byron Bay, New South Wales, 

Australia. Elsie, b. 25 December 1884, Oak Flats, New 

South Wales, Australia, d. 6 September 1956, Bangalow, 

New South Wales, Australia. Child: 

- Esther Rose Murley (1912-1995) 
 

 

 George T. Murley, b. 1881, Wollogong, New South 

Wales, Australia, d. 15 April 1963. No other information 

has been found on this George T. Murley. 
 

ii. Abraham Boulton, b. 20 November 1841, Binfield, Berkshire, 

England, d. 17 February 1908. Burial St. Philip’s Anglican 

Church, Orange City, New South Wales, Australia. Was a 

farmer and laborer. It’s believed he never married. 
 

 Eliza Finbow Murley, 

age 20 
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i. Charles Boulton, b. 5 October 1822, d. 5 February 1824. See 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/127783676/charles-

boulton, 
 

ii. Nelson M. or W. Boulton, b. 1824, d. 10 September 1852. See 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/127783782/nelson-

boulton, 
 

iii. Hannah Boulton, b. 1827, d. 6 August 1831, 
 

iv. Henry H. Boulton, b. 1827, d. 6 August 1831, 

 Note:  It appears that Hannah and Henry were twins. 
 

v. Charlotte M. Boulton, b. 13 October 1828, Orleans County, N. 

Y., d. 14 November 1903. Married George A. Newton, 16 

February 1857, Lenawee, MI. George b. 22 April New York, d. 9 

April 1902, Easton, Ionia County, MI. According to U.S. 

Censuses in 1860, 1880 and 1900, they lived in Easton, Ionia 

Co., MI. They had the following children: 
 

 Owen E. Newton, b. 4 December 1858, Easton, Ionia 

County, MI, d. 1924, Easton, Ionia County, MI. Married 

Florence L. Bigsby, abt. 1885. Child: 

- Clara C. Newton, b. 5 May 1889, d. Unknown. 
 

 Ella E. Newton, b. 15 October 1861, Easton, Ionia County, 

MI, d. 30 September 1862. 

 Note: Charlotte, George and children are buried at Oak Hill 

 Cemetery in Ionia, MI. 
 

vi. George N. Boulton, b. 14 March 1832, Albion, Orleans Co., NY, 

d. 19 August 1921, Blissfield, Palmyra Twp., Lenawee Co., MI. 

He was a private in the Civil War, Company H, 11th Michigan 

Regiment. In 1865, returning from the Civil War, he married 

Sarah Anne Jacklin, b. January 14, 1845, Toledo, OH, d. 

September 22, 1915, Palmyra Twp Lenawee Co., MI. It’s 

believed that George and Sarah had the following children: 
 

 Ella Mae Boulton, b. September 14, 1866, De Witt, Clinton 

Co., MI, d. October 8, 1923, Kansas City, MO. Married 

William Dennis Thayer, b. 1865, d. Unknown. Children: 

- George W. Boulton, b. 3 December 1899, d. May 1971. 

- Unknown 

- Unknown 
 

 Maggie Boulton, b. November 1868, MI, d. Unknown. 

Married Richard Henry Polley or Polly, 16 April 1891, 

Lucas, Ohio. Richard, b. 26 November 1864, Lucas, Ohio, 

d. 11 May 1919. Child: 

- Helen Polley, b. 1897, d. 1897. 
 

 

 William W. Boulton, b. 26 November 1869, Rives Junction, 

Jackson, MI, d. 7 December 1943, Los Angeles, CA. 

Married Bertha Brewer, 23 June 1898, Raisin Center, 

iii. William Britten Boulton, b. 20 February 1843, Binfield, 

Berkshire, England, d. 22 December 1919, Orange New 

South Wales. Buried at Orange Anglican Cemetery, Orange 

New South Wales, Australia. Married Emily Shipp, 26 

September 1865 in Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia. 

She was born 22 August 1846, Waterbeach, Chesterton, 

Cambridge, England, died 1 March 1923, Orange, New 

South Wales, Australia. Buried Orange Anglican Cemetery, 

Orange New South Wales, Australia. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: William’s Obituary at 

https://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/117870174 - “MR. 

WILLIAM BOULTON. An old resident passed away on Monday 

morning, Mr. William Boulton, at his residence, Hill-street. He fell ill 

on Sunday evening, the cause being the rupture of a blood vessel in 

the heart, and succumbed on Monday morning at 10 o'clock. He was 

one of the oldest residents of the March district, whereby energy and 

hard work he had made a competence for himself, and had retired to 

Orange to enjoy it in the declining years of his life. He leaves a 

grown-up family. He was seventy-seven years of age and had passed 

the larger portion of them in the March area. The funeral left his late 

residence, Hill Sy., at 2 o'clock yesterday afternoon for the Church of 

England cemetery, March.” 

 

 

William B. Boulton Emily (Shipp) Boulton 
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Lenawee, MI. Bertha, b. 4 November 1880, d. 1 May 1911. 

Children: 

- Wallace Boulton, b. 1898, d. Unknown. 

- Leroy Henry Boulton, b. 1901, d. 1990. 

- Leanora V. Boulton, b. 2 September 1904, d. 10 

November 1908. 

- Marjory D. Boulton, b. 1906, d. Unknown. Married 

Adolph Baker Schoenen, 13 May 1924, Orange, 

California. 
 

 Nancy Boulton, b. 11 September 1870, Raisin Center, 

Lenawee, MI, d. 26 November 1944, Kern, CA. Married 

Charles R. Patterson, 30 October 1888, Lucas, OH. 

Charles, b. 5 February 1867, Palmyra Twp., Lenawee 

County, MI, d. 13 June 1901, Adrian, Lenawee County, 

MI. Charles married at 25, died at age 34 of blood 

poisoning from a logging accident where his leg was 

crushed. He and Nancy had 7 children as follows: 

- Ada May Patterson, b. 12 August 1889, Adrian, 

Lenawee County, MI, d. 17 September 1971, 

Cupertino, Santa Clara, CA. Married Will R. Huckle. 
 

- Florence Myrtle Patterson, b. 2 August 1891, Adrian, 

Lenawee County, MI, d. 12 September 1923, 

Bakersfield, Kern, CA. Married William Frank 

LaGore, 11 June 1908, Los Angeles, CA. William, b. 

21 August 1884, Adrian, Lenawee County, MI, d. 26 

June 1953, Kern, CA. Children: 

 Infant LaGore, b. 1909, d. 1909, 

 Ethel May LaGore, b. 1911, d. Unknown. 

 Marian Louise LaGore, b. 1913, d. 1965,  

 Ernest Leo LaGore, b. 1914, d. 2004,  

 Harold Glenn LaGore, b. 1914, d. 1966, and 

 Robert L LaGore, b. 1917, d. 1998. 

Note: After the death of Florence in 1923, William married 

Kate in 1925, who was born in 1885. Apparently, Kate 

must have died, since William also married Minnie Lee 

Stewart, b. 1891, d. 1976. 
 

- Emery B. Patterson, b. 11 December 1892, Adrian, 

Lenawee County, MI, d. Unknown. 
 

- Erma Isabell Patterson, b. 11 December 1892, 

Adrian, Lenawee County, MI, d. 1936, California. 

Married William George Miles, 27 September 1909, 

Los Angeles, CA. William, b. 31 October 1886, 

London, England, d. 17 February 1948, Los Angeles, 

CA. Erma and William had 2 children: 

 Dorothy Lee Miles, b. 1912, d. Unknown. 

 Ernest Leo Miles, b. 1914, d. 2004. 

Note: It appears that Erma and William must have gotten a 

divorce, since Erma married Melchior Merk (marriage 

date unknown), b. 21 December 1893, Röfingen, Günzburg, 

Schwaben, Bavaria, Germany, d. 18 April 1987, Los 

 Parents of Emily (Shipp) Boulton were: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Children of William and Emily (Shipp) Boulton are: 
 

 Charles Boulton, b. 1866, Wollongong, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 1871, Wollongong, New South 
Wales, Australia. 
 

 Thomas William Boulton, b. 1 Oct. 1867, Wollongong or 
Avondale, New South Wales, Australia, d. 11 August 
1956, Orange, New South Wales, Australia. Married 
Amy Elizabeth Tucker, 1898, Cowra, New South Wales, 
Australia. Amy, b. 1874, Cowra, New South Wales, 
Australia, d. 1911, Orange, New South Wales, Australia. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It’s believed that Thomas and Amy had the following 
children: 
- Bertha Grace Boulton (1898-1979) 
- Harold William Boulton (1899–1983). 

 

After the death of Amy, Thomas William married Ethel 

Griffith, 21 October 1914, Orange New South Wales, 

Australia. Ethel was b. 1882, Orange, New South Wales, 

Australia, d. 7 January 1970, Orange, New South Wales, 

Australia. Together they had three children: 
 

- Reginald Douglas Boulton (1915-1997) 

- Lorraine Iris Boulton (1918–1976) 

- Kenneth Milton Boulton (1920–1984) 
 

 Ephraim Boulton, b. 22 January 1870, Crookwell, New 

South Wales, Australia, d. unknown. 
 

  Sarah Markham, 
b. 5 May 1826, Waterbeach, 

Cambridgeshire, Eng., 
d. 16 May 1918, Crookwell, 
New South Wales, Australia 

 

John Shipp 
b. 6 January 1820 

Bottisham Lode, Cambridgeshire, 
Eng., d. 13 April 1900 Crookwell, 

New South Wales, Australia 

  
Thomas William Boulton Amy Elizabeth Tucker 
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Angeles, CA. It appears too that William remarried to 

Dorothea Anna Jensen (1886–1973). 
 

- Hazel L. Patterson, b. 23 April 1894, Adrian, Lenawee 
County, MI, d. 4 March 1970, Los Angeles, CA. 
Married William A. Ford, 26 April 1909, Los 
Angeles, CA. William, b. 1886, d. Unknown. Hazel 
apparently was also married to John Merriman, b. 
1873, d. Unknown. They were divorced before 1920. 
And Walter Woods Young, b. 1879, d. 1949. They 
were married October 1945, California. 

 

- Norman Sylvester Patterson, b. 6 October 1895, 
Adrian, Lenawee County, MI, d. 6 September 1951, 
Kern, CA. 

 

- Gertrude E. Patterson, b. 29 March 1898, Adrian, 
Lenawee County, MI, d. 18 December 1981, Santa 
Clara, CA. Married Joseph Fred Conley, 30 March 
1912, Bakersfield, Kern, CA. Joseph, b. 16 June 
1891, Elgin, Union, Oregon, d. 19 September 1956, 
Santa Clara, CA. Children: 

 

 James Fred Conley (1913–1965) 
 Lloyd Conley (1914–1914) 
 Chester Conley (1915–1915) 
 Bessie L. Conley (1917–1918) 
 Victor G. Conley (1919–1997) 
 Vera Inez Conley (1923–1984) 
 Thomas Paul Conley (1926–1972) 
 Donald D. Conley (1932- Unknown) 

 
- Charles Leon Patterson, b. 30 November 1899, 

Adrian, Lenawee County, MI, d. 17 June 1968, 
Kern, CA. Married Annie Bell Crisel, b. 4 November 
1913, Illinois, d. 21 November 1987, Los Angeles, 
CA. Child: 

 

 Charles Donald Patterson, b. 1933, d. 2008. 

 
 Isabelle “Belle,” Boulton, b. 2 February 1872, Palmyra, 

Lenawee, MI, d. 1955. Married Henry W. Willnow, 2 
March 1901. Henry, b. 15 March 1875, Adrian, Lenawee, 
MI, d. 17 January 1944, Brooklyn, Jackson Co., MI. 
Children: 
- Mary Louise Willnow, b. 26 August 1901, d. 22 

December 1981. 
- Carl H. Willnow, b. 23 March 1903, d. 20 

September 1903. 
- Gladis L. Willnow, b. 26 March 1904, d. 1 

November 1994. 
- Theodore Willnow, b. 14 Jul y 1905, d. 15 Aug 1905. 
- Elmore Willnow, b. 14 Jul y 1905, d. 15 Aug 1905. 
- Bertha M. Willnow, b. 2 December 1906, d. 28 

August 1983. 
 

 Mary Ann Boulton, b. 18 October 1873, Palmyra, Lenawee, 

MI, d. 1958, Palmyra, Lenawee, MI. Married Holloway 

 Laura Selina Boulton, b. 6 August 1872, Cookwell, New 
South Wales, Australia, d. 11 August 1955, Cheesemans 
Creek, New South Wales, Australia. Married Benjamin 
Charles Allcorn, 15 February 1899, Orange, New South 
Wales, Australia. Benjamin, b. 22 June 1875, Emu 
Swamp, New South Wales, Australia, d. 2 February 
1962, Cheesemans Creek, New South Wales, Australia. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Together it’s believed that Benjamin and Laura had at 
least the following children: 

 
 

- Ralston Allcorn (1900-1983), 
- Theophilus Allcorn (1901-1980), 
- Cecil Allcorn (1904-1967) 
- Olive Emily Allcorn (1907-? 
- Francis Charles Allcorn (1910-1975) 

 

 Ernest Edward Boulton, b. 22 October 1875, March, 

New South Wales, Australia, d. 1942, Orange, New 

South Wales, Australia. Ernest married Elizabeth Dunn, 

b. 19 July 1877 Orange, New South Wales, Australia in 

1905. They had the following children: 
  

 

- Y Amy Conroy Boulton (1906-2002) 
- Isobel Doris Boulton (1908- Unknown) 
- Irene Mary Boulton (1911- Unknown) 
- William John Boulton (1914-1976) 
- Kevin Ernest Boulton (1925- Unknown) 
- Ronald Edward Boulton (Unknown -2018) 

 

 Herbert S. Boulton, b. 26 

March 1879, Orange, 

New South Wales, 

Australia, d. 24 June 

1955, Orange, New 

South Wales, Australia. 

Herbert was married to 

Margaret Jane Connolly, 

born 1883, Orange, New 

South Wales, Australia, 

d. 17 June 1982 at the 

age of 98. 

  

Benjamin Charles Allcorn Laura Selina Boulton 

 

Mr. & Mrs. Herbert Boulton 
(Margaret Jane Connolly) 
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Sawyer, 20 March 1895, Palmyra, Lenawee Co., MI. 

Holloway, b. 28 June 1871, Palmyra, Lenawee, MI, d. 

1957, Palmyra, Lenawee, MI. Child: 

- Howard Holloway Sawyer, b. 21 October 1902, d. 8 

February 1981. 
 

 Charlotte Boulton, b. 17 April 1875, d. Unknown. Married 

Edward Patterson, b. 3 September 1873, Palmyra, 

Lenawee Co., MI, d. 28 April 1928, Streator, LaSalle, 

Illinois. 
 

 George Boulton, b. 5 August 1878, Palmyra, Lenawee, MI, 

d. 15 September 1967, Palmyra, Lenawee, MI. Married 

Albertha L. Power, 9 May 1912, Palmyra Township, 

Lenawee Co., MI. Albertha, b. 30 June 1883, Michigan, d. 2 

February 1919. Children: 

- Vincent G. Boulton, b. 13 June 1913, Michigan, d. 

18 February 2006. May have died in Toledo, OH. 

- Stella A. Boulton, b. 6 May 1915, Palmyra, Lenawee 

Co., MI, d. 2 March 2013, Palmyra, Lenawee Co., 

MI. 
Notes: Stella A. Boulton, 97, of Palmyra passed away Saturday, 

March 2, 2013, at Bixby Medical Center (Adrian, MI). She was 

born May 6, 1915, in Palmyra, Michigan, the daughter of 

George and Bertha (Powers) Boulton. She was raised by 

Walter and Emmie Goetting (Stella’s mother Albertha died in 

1919). Stella worked her entire life farming on her family's 

farm in Palmyra. She enjoyed socializing with friends and the 

many visitors, young and old who brought baskets of food, 

delivered Meals on Wheels, and sang Christmas carols. 

Stella and her older brother Vincent, may not have ever 

married since both are buried under the same headstone. 

Source for both notes: 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/106173998/stella-a-

boulton. 

- Gorden Boulton, 26 Feb 1917, Lenawee Junction, 

Lenawee Co., MI, d. 10 Feb 1919, Lenawee Co., MI. 
 

 Nelson Albert Boulton, b. 4 October 1879, Palmyra, 

Lenawee Co., MI, d. 30 Oct 1945, Binghamton, Broome 

Co., NY. Married Celia Alberta Limpricht, 26 September 

1900, Palmyra, Lenawee Co., MI. Celia, b. 4 June 1878, 

Clinton, Lenawee Co., MI, d. Unknown. Children of 

Nelson and Celia are: 

- Nelson A. Jr. Boulton, b. 1902, Adrian, Lenawee 

Co., MI, d. Unknown. Married Ruth Lynn Weir, b. 

30 November 1902, Lexington, Sanilac, MI, d. 1 

February 1975, Flint, Genesee Co., MI. 

- Edith Boulton, b. 1905, Adrian, Lenawee, Michigan, 

d. Unknown. Married Fred G. Drier, 24 Feb 1921, 

Flint, Genesee Co., MI. Fred, b. 1896, d. Unknown. 

- Blanche Boulton, b. 1915, Enfield, New York, d. 11 

June 1994, Adrian, Lenawee Co., MI. Married Ira 

Otis Simpson, 26 June 1946. Ira, b. 11 December 

Both Herbert and Margaret are buried at the March 
Uniting Church Cemetery, Orange City, New South 
Wales, Australia. They had the following children: 

- Oswald Herbert Boulton (1914-1977) 
- William Francis Boulton (1918- Unknown) 
- Raymond Boulton, (1927-1928) 

 

 Frederick Boulton, b. 13 April 1882, March, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 24 October 1966, Orange, New 
South Wales, Australia. Married Maud Mary Miller, 15 
April 1914 at Holy Trinity Cofe, Orange, New South 
Wales, Australia. Maud, b. 17 October 1883, March, 
Orange, New South Wales, Australia, d. 28 June 1967. 
Both Frederick and Maud are buried at the St. Phillips 
Anglican Cemetery, Orange, New South Wales, 
Australia. Together they had the following children: 

 

- Thelma May Boulton (1916-2014) 
- Clifford Allen Boulton (1918-1993) 

 

 Percival Boulton, b. 9 April 
1885, Orange, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 17 
September 1962, Newtown, 
New South Wales, Australia. 
Married Emmaline Tucker 
in 1919, Cowra, New South 
Wales, Australia. Emmaline, 
b. 1887, d. 25 May 1950. 
Both Percival and Emmaline 
are buried at the St. 
Bartholomew's Anglican 
Church, Prospect Cemetery, 
Sydney, New South Wales, 
Australia. Children: 
- Russell Allen Owen Boulton (1920-2005) 
- Leslie George Boulton (1922–1999) 

 

 Elsie Adelaide Boulton, b. 
23 October 1887, March, 
New South Wales, Australia, 
d. 2 April 1949, Orange, 
New South Wales, Australia. 
Married William Arthur 
Dein, 1909 at Orange, New 
South Wales, Australia. 
William b. 9 January 1884, 
Bathurst, New South Wales, 
Australia, d. 7February 
1953, Paddington, New 

 South Wales, Australia. Both Elisa and William are 
 buried in the Orange General Cemetery, 
 Orange, Orange City, New South Wales, Australia. It’s 
 believed that Elisa and William had two children: 

 

- Dulcie Gladys Dein (1910-2002) 
- Leslie Arthur Dein (1914-1989) 

 
Elsie A. (Boulton) Dein 

 
Percival & Emmaline 

(Tucker) Boulton 
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1907, d. 26 January 1982, Morenci, Lenawee Co., 

MI. 

Notes: It appears that Nelson’s first wife Celia died between 

Blanche’s birth in 1915 and when Nelson’s second wife died in 

1927. See 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/185016367/kathryn-e-

boulton. Nelson is buried with his second wife, Kathryn E. 

“Kate” Decker Boulton (1872-1927) as you can see from the 

headstone. Nelson was also married after that to Alice 

L. Spaulding (1878-1973), between 1927 and 1945 when 

Nelson died. See 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/178629351/alice-l-

spaulding.  
 

 

 Grace G. Boulton, b. 26 January 1881, Palmyra, Lenawee, 

MI, d. 22 April 1924 in Riverside, CA. Married 6 November 

1903, Adrian, Lenawee, MI to Albert Eisenmann, b. 1868, 

Michigan, d. 28 September 1908, Los Angeles, CA. 

Children: 

- Gladys L. Eisenmann, b. 1904, d. 2001, Belfair, 

Mason Co., WA. Married Ray M. Hannah (1896-

1977) 

- Margaret Viola Eisenmann, b. 1906, d. 1907. 

- James Albert Eisenmann, b. 1908, d. Unknown. 

Married 10 November 1909, Los Angeles, CA to Robert 

Edward Chormicle, b. 12 February 1885, California, d. 20 

October 1947, Los Angeles, CA. Children: 

- Esther Mrytle Chormicle, b. 6 June 1910, Barstow, 

CA, d. 15 July 1984, Riverside, CA 

- William George Chormicle, b. 23 July 1912, 

California, d. 8 October 1962, Los Angeles, CA 

- Wallace W. Chormicle, b. 4 December 1913, 

California, d. 11 March 1984, San Bernadino, CA 

- Frances Chormicle, b. 1916, d. Unknown. 

- Mary Louise Chormicle, b. 1919, d. 1990 

Note: Some colorful, but tragic history involving the Chormicle 

family can be found at 

https://scvhistory.com/scvhistory/pollack0914feud.htm and 

https://scvhistory.com/scvhistory/jb_laherald060390.htm.  
 

 James Blain Boulton, b. November 1886, Palmyra, 

Lenawee, MI, d. August 1955, West Roxbury, Suffolk 

County, MA. Married Elizabeth Anna "Bessie" Carter, 9 

August 1909, Boston, Suffolk, Massachusetts. Elizabeth, b. 

abt. 1882, Quebec, Canada, d. September 1929, West 

Roxbury, Suffolk County, MA. Children: 

- Bertha Boulton, b. abt. 1909, d. Unknown. 

- Gilbert Boulton, b. abt. 1918, d. Unknown. 

- James Boulton, b. abt. 1925, d. Unknown. 

Note: This was the second marriage for Bessie. At the time of this 

marriage, James was an electrician at the Boston Navy Yard. In 

the 1930 U.S. Census, a James Boulton was listed living in 

Cambridge, Middlesex, MA. He was listed as a widow, with three 

children, Bertha, age 21; Gilbert, age 12; and James, age 5. This 

- Joan Dein (Unknown-Unknown) (from Of Town 
Mice document) 

- Kevin Dein (Unknown-Unknown) (from Of Town 
Mice document) 

- Carolyn Dein (Unknown-Unknown) (from Of Town 
Mice document) 

- Alan Dein (Unknown-Unknown) (from Of Town 
Mice document) 

- Robert Dein (Unknown-Unknown) (from Of Town 
Mice document) 

 

iv. Esther Mary Ann Boulton, b. 21 January 1844, Binfield, 
Berkshire, England, d. 1929, Lane Cove, New South Wales, 
Australia. She married Henry James, 11 November 1862, St. 
Lukes, Dapto, New South Wales, Australia. Henry, b. 
unknown, d. 20 October 1875. Children: 

 

 Alfred James, b. 24 November 1867, Wollongong, New 
South Wales, Australia, d. 13 January 1951, Chatswood, 
Sydney, Australia. Married Alice Magdalene Hansen, 
1893, St. Leonards, New South Wales, Australia, Alice, 
b. abt. 1872, d. 23 April 1934, Australia. It’s unknown if 
they had any children. 

 

 Augustus James, b. 9 August 1869, Australia, d. 4 July 
1941, Ashfield, New South Wales, Australia. Married 
Rebecca Taubman, 12 June 1871, Sydney, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 20 November 1968, Australia.  

 

Children of Augusta James and Rebecca Taubman: 
- Norman Devine James (1888–1968) 
- Augustus James (1891-1973) 

 

 

v. Joseph Boulton, b. 25 May 1846, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. 5 September 1911, Granville, New South Wales 
Australia. 

 

vi. James Boulton, b. 30 March 1848, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. 1 August 1923, Granville, New South Wales, 
Australia. Burial 3 August 1923, Rockwood Cemetery, 
Sydney, New South Wales, Australia. James of 1 Ernest 
Street North Sydney was the informant of the death of his 
father Thomas in 1896, also a witness at the burial. 

 

vii. Thomas Boulton, b. 10 March 1850, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. January 1852, Binfield, Berkshire, England. 
Burial 19 January 1852, All Saints Church, Binfield, 
Berkshire, England. 

 

viii. Sarah Boulton, b. 17 January 1852, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. March 1852, Binfield, Berkshire England. Burial 
15 March 1852, All Saints Church, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England. 

 

ix. Henry Boulton, b. 15 February 1853, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. 4 July 1932, Woollahra, New South Wales, 
Australia. Married Christiana Ellen Taylor, 1877, St. 
Leonard’s, New South Wales, Australia. She was b. 12 
March 1853, New South Wales, Australia, d. 26 September 
1914. 
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likely is our James Boulton, since the listing said he was born in 

Michigan, with his father born in NY State and his mother born in 

Ohio, which his parent’s births, we know to be true. Both James 

and Bessie are buried at the Saint Joseph Cemetery in West 

Roxbury, MA, respectively at 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/209261158/james-blain-

boulton and 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/209260775/bessie-boulton. 
 

vii. Mary Louise Boulton, b. 21 October 1833, Otsego Co., NY, 

d. 13 June 1899, Easton, Ionia Co., MI. Mary married 

Richard Carter, then John S. Wells, Jr. John, b. 11 March 

1824, Warren, NY, d. March 13, 1874, Claypool, IN. John 

was also married to Sally A. (Unknown) in 1848. Sally, b. 3 

November 1822, d. 4 April 1892. At ancestry.com it says 

that Charles Lucine Wells, b. 23 September 1866, Wawaka, 

Noble Co., Indiana, d. 4 June 1949, Imola, Napa Co., CA, 

was a son of John S. Wells and Mary Louise Boulton. So, 

it appears that John S. Wells, Jr., was married to Sally A. 

(Unknown), before he was married to Mary Louise Boulton, 

since John and Sally were married in 1848. It appears that 

Charles went on to marry Orpha Dirck (1871-1899) 

and Mary Jane Van Valkenburg (1881-1966) and between 

them, had 12 children.  
 

viii. Nancy L. Boulton, b. 4 November 1835, Lenawee County, 

MI, d. 12 February 1892, Easton Twp., Ionia Co., MI. On 3 

April 1859 in Ionia Co., MI, married Isaac Benjamin 

Haynor, b. 6 February 1831, Victory, Saratoga Co., NY., d. 

18 June 1913, Easton, Ionia Co., MI. Together, they had the 

following children: 
 

 Albert Clements Haynor, b. 29 August 1860, Easton 

Township, Ionia Co., MI, d. 11 October 1939, Easton 

Township, Ionia Co., MI. Married Elizabeth (Libbie) 

Conner, 6 April 1887. Mary, a child of William H. 

Conner and Mollie Hulin, b. 29 June 1868, d. 8 

August 1951 Easton Twp., Ionia County, MI. 

Together Libby and Albert had five children: 

- Lloyd Elton Haynor, b. 1888, d. 1945 of colon 

cancer. Married Caroline R. (Carrie) Krueger, 

22 June 1912. Caroline, b. 19 May 1895, d. 17 

April 1968 from myocardial infarction. She was 

the daughter of Julius Krueger and Augusta 

Druschkowsky. Both are buried in Grand Lawn 

Cemetery, Detroit, MI. Children: Elmore 

William Haynor (March 1913-August 1913); 

Albert Lloyd Haynor (1914-1993); Mildred 

Elisabeth Haynor (1915-1944); and Arthur 

Elton Haynor (1918-1987). 

- William Roy Haynor, b. 28 October 1889, 

Easton, Ionia Co., MI, d. 24 August 1961, 

Ludington, Mason Co., MI. Married (1) 

Eleanor Lillian Metcalf, 1 Aug. 1912, Holly, 

Oakland Co., MI. Eleanor, b. 29 September 

 It’s believed Henry & Christiana had the following children: 
 

 Thomas William Boulton (1878–Unknown). 
 Constance Hilda Annie Boulton (1881–1911). 
 Frank George Boulton (1883–1963). 
 Harold James Boulton (1886–1958). 
 Ida Olive Boulton (1889-1974). 
 Joseph Boulton (1893–1893). 
 Victoria May Boulton (1894–1925). 

 

x. Eliza Boulton, b. 1 January 1855, Old Building, Binfield, 
Berkshire, England. She died between 19 October 1856 and 
22 January 1857 on board the ship travelling to New South 
Wales, Australia, see https://records-
primo.hosted.exlibrisgroup.com/primo-
explore/fulldisplay?context=L&vid=61SRA&lang=en_US&
docid=INDEX727168.  

 

xi. Elizabeth A. Boulton, b. 30 April 1857, Dapto, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 2 June 1942, Home of Peace, 
Marrickville, New South Wales, Australia. Burial 4 June 
1942, Rookward Cemetery, New South Wales, Australia. She 
married William Henry Love, 23 January 1877. William, b. 
24 November 1855, George St., Sydney, New South Wales, 
Australia, d. 10 November 1927, The Hospice, Lewisham, 
New South Wales, Australia. Both are buried at the 
Rookwood General Cemetery, Rookwood, Cumberland 
Council, New South Wales, Australia. Together they had the 
following children: 

 

 Joseph Love, b. 1877, d. 1877, Sydney, New South 
Wales, Australia. 

 

 Ada Florence Love, b. 1879, Waterloo, Sydney, New 
South Wales, Australia, d. 1967, Padstow, Canterbury-
Bankstown Council, New South Wales, Australia. 
Married Joseph E. Davison in 1899 at Glebe, New South 
Wales, Australia. Joseph, b. 1877, d. 1935, Sydney, 
Hurstville, New South Wales, Australia. Together it’s 
believed they had the following children: 

 

- Henry Joseph Edward Davison (1900-1974) 
- Victoria R. M. Davison (1905-1906) 
- Dulcie Florence Davison (1912-1985) 

 
 

 

 Lily May Love, b. 1880, Waterloo, Sydney, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 22 July 1971, Sydney, New South 
Wales, Australia. She married William Robert Reid in 
1904, Sydney, New South Wales, Australia. William was 
b. 1875, Glebe, New South Wales, Australia, d. 12 
February 1965, Newtown, New South Wales, Australia. 
Together, it’s believed they had the following children: 

 
 

- William H. Reid (1904-1904) 
- Dorothy M. Reid (1905-1907) 
- Alma M. Reid (1907-bef. 2007) 
- Marjorie (Marge) L Reid (1909-bef. 2007) 
- William B. Reid (1910-1921) 
- Edward Reid (Unknown-1912) 
- John (Jack) Robert Reid (1912-1998) 
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1893, Grayling, MI, d. 7 January 1937, 

Ludington, MI. Roy was a corporal in the U.S. 

Signal Corps with the Michigan National 

Guard, Company A, as shown on his WWI 

Registration Card on 5 June 1917.  As of this 

date, he had been in the Signal Corps for 2 

years and 6 months.  He worked for the 

railroad for 44 ½ years as station agent and 

telegrapher throughout Michigan. Roy was an 

avid outdoorsman; hunter, trapper and 

fisherman.  He was a renowned taxidermist 

nearly his entire life.  He had been a collector 

for at least 10 years with the U.S. Department 

of Agriculture Bureau of Biological Survey.  

His individual collection of migratory birds was 

on display at Michigan State College 

(University) at least by 1933. Children, Sylvia 

Mildred Haynor (1913-1983; Lillian Alice 

Haynor (1914-1999), Paul LaVerne Haynor 

(1916-1998), Arthur Roy Haynor (1918-2006), 

Mary Elizabeth Haynor (1920-2005), Byron 

Connor Haynor (1923-2006, Betty Jane Haynor 

(1925-1975), and Eleanor Ann Haynor (1930-

2014). 
 

Married (2) Helen Pearl Miller, 18 June 1939 

Manistee, MI. Helen, b. 21 March 1921, Alger, 

Ohio, d. 23 November 1998, Fremont, MI. 

Children of Roy and Helen are, Lloyd Glenn 

Haynor (1942-2001) and Edward Lee Haynor 

(1950-Still Living). After the death of Roy 

Haynor, Helen married Millerd Wesley Sanders 

25 May 1963.  Mr. Sanders died in 1987. 
 

- Albert LaVerne Haynor, b. 25 June 1891, 

Easton Twp., Ionia Co., MI, d. 26 January 

1975, Sheridan Township, Montcalm Co., MI.  

He married Elsie Anna Sweers, 18 June 1921. 

Elsie, b. 18 January 1899, d. 24 April 1986 at 

their family farm just east of Shiloh, Orleans 

Twp., Ionia County, MI. Elsie was the daughter 

of Martin John Sweers and Amy Francelia 

Smith. Children: Eva Mae Haynor, (1922-

1997) and Marian Marie Haynor (1926-2017). 
 

- Mildred Grace Haynor, b. 15 January 1895, d. 

16 March 1973. Married (1) Stephen 

Champlain Durham, Jr., 16 July 1916. Stephen 

b. 4 June 1893, d. 17 January 1957, Reed City, 

MI. Married (2) Clesery, (Cherry) D. Brown, 4 

April 1921. Cherry, b. January 1897, d. 1 June 

1924 of TB acquired in WWI. Married (3) 

Roger Irvin Gulick, 1931. Roger, b. 25 May 

1895, d. 13 December 1982. 

- Frederick (Freddy) C. Reid (1914-1925 
- Reginald Reid (Unknown-1918) 
- Shirley Reid (Unknown-1931) 
- Syd Reid (Unknown-bef. 2007) 

 

 Pricilla Catherine Love, b. 7 May 1882, St Leonard’s, 
New South Wales, Australia, d. 27 August 1956, 44 
Quigg Street Lakemba, New South Wales, Australia. 
Married William John Stewart, 29 August 1906. He was 
born 24 March 1883, d. 22 May 1952. Pricilla 
Catherine, William John, and son John Raymond are 
buried Waverley Cemetery, Bronte, Waverley 
Council, New South Wales, Australia. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 It’s believed William and Pricilla had the following children: 
- Marjorie Jean Stewart (1907-1966) 
- Bessie Margaret Stewart (1909-1976) 
- Charles William Stewart (1912-1982) 
- John Raymond Stewart (Unknown-1923)  
- Catherine Merle Stewart (1924-1988) 
 

 Elizabeth Ann Love, b. 1884, Petersham, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 1965, Bankstown, New South Wales, 
Australia. Married Frederick John Vennart Higgins, 10 
Nov 1910, Sydney, New South Wales, Australia. 
Frederick, b. abt. 1883, New South Wales, d. 1921, 
Canterbury, New South Wales. It’s unknown if they had 
any children. 

 

 

 Alice Maude Love, b. 31 
July 1886, Petersham, New 
South Wales, Australia, d. 9 
March 1970. Married 31 
July 1909 at St. Michaels 
Church, Flinders St., 
Sydney, Australia to 
widower, William James 
Piggott, b. 9 March 1856, 
Gosford New South Wales, 
Australia, d. 3 April 1929, 
Midson Road Eastwood, 

Pricilla Catherine Love & William John Stewart wedding party, from L to R: 
Hilda Love (flower girl), Charles William Stewart (husband’s father standing), 
William John Stewart, Pricilla Catherine Love, Elizabeth (Boulton) Love 
(bride’s mother standing), Elizabeth “Lizzie” Love (sister standing), & 
William Love (bride’s father sitting). 

 

Alice Maude Love 



©  20 

 

Children of Mildred Haynor and Cherre Brown 

are: Ruth Kathleen Brown (1921-1983); Daryl 

David Brown (twin) (1924-2018; and Hal 

Haynor Brown (twin) (1924-2005). Child of 

Mildred Haynor and Roger Gulick is Roseann 

Gulick (1933-Still Living). 
 

- Alice Gertrude Haynor, b. 9 November 1898, d. 

22 November 1987. Married (1) Forrest H. 

Vaughn 17 February 1924, Lake County, IN, 

divx., 16 December 1926, Ingham County, MI. 

Forest, b. 11 July 1903, Monticello, Jones Co., 

Iowa, d. 3 October 1990, Los Angeles Co., CA. 

Married (2) Harry Bull, 15 December 1943, 

Pontiac, Oakland Co., MI. Harry, b. 27 March 

1889, Detroit, Wayne Co., MI, d. 22 June 1969, 

Ionia, Ionia Co., MI. Child of Alice Haynor and 

Forrest Vaughn is Richard Clements Vaughn 

(1925-2016). 
 

- Arthur Benjamin Haynor, b. 1905, d. 1974. 

Married (1) Doretha L. Creviston, Bowling 

Green, Wood Co., Ohio, 5 Dec. 1927, Doretha, 

b. 6 June 1908, Huntington, Huntington Co., 

Indiana, d. 26 July 1971, Mecosta, Mecosta 

Co., Michigan; divx. 17 October 1934, 

Newaygo Co., MI. Married (2) Eileen Cecelia 

(Hough) Robbins, 7 May 1949, Eileen, b. 17 

May 1914, d. 1 September 1988. Eileen brought 

two children, Geraldine (Weeks) and Beverly 

(Lockwood) to the marriage.  Arthur may have 

adopted Geraldine and Beverly, since at 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/5913695

1/geraldine-a-weeks, says that “Geraldine A. 

Haynor Weeks, 79, of Saranac passed away in 

Dewitt. Art Haynor retired captain of the 

guards, Ionia Reformatory in 1967. Child of 

Arthur Haynor and Doretha Creviston is James 

Mclaughlin Haynor (1928-1987). He served in 

the U.S. Navy and U.S. Airforce just after 

WWII. He is buried at Fort Gibson, Muskogee 

County, OK, Section 14 Site 102. 
 
 
 

 Elmore L. Haynor, b. 30 December 1867, Easton 

Township, Ionia Co., MI, d. 17 January 1901, Fort 

Scott, KS. Married Julia Mae McGann, 10 August 

1890, Ionia, MI. Julia, daughter of Joe McGann, b. 

1871 in Portland, MI, d. 1918 in Traverse City, 

MI. Elmore was a railroad man, becoming a 

dispatcher at Fort Scott, KS where he died in a 

hospital of Typhoid Fever. Child of Elmore and Julia 

was: 

New South Wales, Australia. 
 Children: 
 

- Alice S. Piggott (1910-Unknown) 
- Walter James Piggott (1912-2005) 
- George Allan Piggott (1915-1999) 

 

 Ida Louisa Love, b. 20 June 1888, Marrickville, New 
South Wales, Australia. d. 4 October 1983. Married 
Alfred Harris, 28 November 1912, Glebe, New South 
Wales, Australia. Alfred, b. 30 July 1882, Walgett, New 
South Wales, Australia, d. 7 November 1943, Grandville, 
New South Wales, Australia. Children: 

 

- Thelma Harris 
- Jack Harris 
- Mabel Harris 
- Doug Harris 
- Kathleen Harris 
- Connie Harris 

 2nd marriage to James Gunn Baikie, b. 24 January 1891, 
 Newtown, New South Wales, Australia, d. 1973. 
 

 

 William (Billy) Henry Love, b. 30 December 1890, 
Marrickville, New South Wales, Australia. d. 8 June 1942, 
Redfern, New South Wales, Australia. Married Emily May 
Hill, 16 October 1915, All Souls C of E Leichhardt, NSW, 
Australia. Emily, b. 28 May 1898, Newtown, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 14 July 1980. Child: 
- William Henry Victor Frederick Love (1916-Unk.) 

 

 Charles Frederick Love, b. 1893, Sydney, New South 
Wales, Australia. d. 8 August 1974, Enfield, New South 
Wales, Australia. Married Nellie Gulley, 1921, Burwood, 
New South Wales, Australia. Nellie, b. 1895, d. 3 
December 1955, Lewisham, New South Wales, Australia. 
It’s unknown if they had any children. 

 

 Hilda Muriel Love, b. 5 March 
1895, Sydney, New South 
Wales, Australia. d. 18 
December 1971, Manly, New 
South Wales, Australia. 
Married Albert Charles 
Presdee, 7 July 1917, All 
Saints Church of England, 
Leichhardt, New South Wales, 
Australia. Albert, b. 23 
September 1895, Newtown, 

 Sydney, New South Wales, Australia, d. 22 July 1975, 
 Harbord, New South Wales, Australia. Children: 

- Harold Charles Presdee (1921-1921) 
- Patricia Marjorie Presdee (1928-1928) 

 

 Victor John Love, b. 3 February 1898, Glebe, New 
South Wales, Australia. d. 18 April 1948, Liverpool, 
New South Wales, Australia. Victor enlisted in the 
Australian Imperial Force, March 1916. On 3 June 

 
Hilda Muriel Love, 

age 16 
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- Ethel Nancy Haynor, b. 30 October 1890, d. 1 

June 1960. Taught school in Petoskey, MI and 

Hollywood, CA; resided in Beverly Hills. It is 

believed she never married. 
 

 Leroy J. Haynor, b. 31 December 1872, Easton Twp., 

Ionia County, MI, d. 23 December 1966, St. Louis, 

MI.  Married 24 October 1901, Langport, Gratiot 

Co., MI to Julia Catherine Hudson. Julia, b. 18 June 

1881, Shelbina, MO, d. 21 June 1975, St. Louis, MI.  

She was the daughter of Frank Dickens Hudson (b. 

MI) and Sarah Catherine Janes (b. Marion County, 

near Hunnewell, MO).  Julia was a school teacher 

and later a post office mistress. Leroy had been a 

farmer, railroad station agent, and telegraph 

operator.  It was thought that Leroy had no middle 

name, just the initial “J”, but a WW1 Draft 

Registration Card lists his name as Leroy Jay Haynor 

and he signed the card as Leroy Jay Haynor. 

Children: Elmore L. (Leroy) Haynor (1903-1995); F. 

(Frank) Hudson Haynor (1905-2006); Keith Eugene 

Haynor (1909-1991); Robert J. Haynor (1913-1985); 

and Margaret Lorainne Jessie Haynor (1922-1992). 
 
 

 Blanche Orvilla Haynor, b. 21 May 1878, Easton 

Township, Ionia Co., MI, d. 15 August 1967, 

Shepherd, Isabella Co., MI. Married Henry Herbert 

Perrine, a Spanish American War veteran and a 

railroad man, 8 June 1898, Ionia, MI.  Other records 

show they were married 22 December 1898 in 

Tampa, FL. He was the son of Isaac Perrine and 

Matilda Louise Banfield (or Bandfield).  Herbert, 

born about 1872 in Battle Creek, MI, d. 21 September 

1964, Isabella Co., MI. Children: Francis Helen 

Perrine (1901-1965; Thelma Letha Perrine (1905-

1996); Wayne Haynor Perrine (1907-1987); and 

Henry Herbert Perrine (1916-2001). 
 
 

ix. Daniel Boulton, b. 1838, d. 20 August 1838. Aged less than 

one year, see 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/127783912/daniel-

boulton, 

x. Wallace Boulton, b. 1838, d. 24 February 1861. See 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/127783727/wallace-

boulton. 
 

Note: Daniel and Wallace may have been twins. 
 

xi. Lucius J. Boulton, b. 16 October 1846, Palmyra, Lenawee 

Co., MI, d. 21 April 1910 Palmyra, Lenawee Co,, MI (see 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/127783607/william-

j-boulton). Married Ettie Griffith 21 July 1902. Ettie, b. 

September 16, 1860, Pike, Wyoming Co., NY, d. 28 

November 1938, Ionia, Ionia Co., MI. Lucius entered as a 

1916 deployed for service abroad. In February 2017 
he arrived in France. On 5 July 1918, he was court 
martialed at Sommes, Bullecourt, and Agincourt 
(France) of Flanders Battalion. He was charged with 
having a bottle of champagne, gave a false name to an 
officer, and fled arrest. He pled guilty. Married Lillian 
M. Copland, 12 May 1923, Sydney, New South Wales, 
Australia. Lillian, b. 1902, Newtown, New South 
Wales, Australia, d. 18 April 1989, Arncliffe, New 
South Wales, Australia. It’s unknown if they had any 
children. 

 

xii. Charlotte Boulton, b. 17 January 1860, Avondale, Dapto, 
New South Wales, Australia, d. 2 June 1942, Marrickville, 
New South Wales Australia.. Buried at Field of Mars 
Cemetery, East Ryde, New South Wales, Australia. She 
married William Montgomery, 1883, St. Leonard’s, New 
South Wales, Australia. William, b. 1861, St. Leonards, North 
Sydney Council, New South Wales, Australia, d. 5 November 
1928, North Sydney, North Sydney Council, New South 
Wales, Australia. Children:  
 Un-named Montgomery (1887-1887) 

 

 Ethel Charlotte Montgomery, b. 16 January 1890, New 
South Wales, d. 19 December 1956. Married William G. 
Smith. No information is available on William Smith and 
it’s also unknown if they had any children. 

 

 Eliza Stella Montgomery, b. 1894, St. Leonards, New 
South Wales, Australia, d. 21 August 1989, Lindfield, 
New South Wales, Australia. Married Joseph Roy 
Poppleton, 3 February 1917, St. Leonards, New South 
Wales, Australia. Joseph, b. March 1893, West Street, 
North Sydney, New South Wales, Australia, d. 16 May 
1968. Children: 

 

- Stella Joyce Poppleton (1917–1982) 
- Horace Joseph William Poppleton (1919-Unknown) 
- Myrtle Florence Barton Johnson (1923-Unknown) 

 

ix. Esther Mary Ann Bolton, b. 4 June 
1815, Binfield, Berkshire, England, 
d. 23 February 1904, Paddington, 
New South Wales, Australia. 
Married James Henry Jones, born 
abt. 1817 Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. 11 September 1899, 
Newtown, New South Wales, 
Australia. Esther Mary Ann and 
James Henry Jones emigrated from 
England to Australia in 1864 on the 
ship Sirocco. There were two 
sailings of the Sirocco that reached Australia in 1864. Esther 
(age 48), James (age 46) and daughter Emily (age16) 
emigrated to Australia on the second sailing of the ‘Sirocco’ 
departing London on 8 June 1864 and arrived in Sydney on 3 
October 1864. 

  

 
James Henry Jones 
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private in the Civil War in 1862 and was discharged as a 

corporal, Company F, 7th Michigan Regiment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Interestingly, it says at find-a-grave, that Charles Boulton , from above, 
son of William James Boulton, died in 1824 and is buried in 
Palmyra, Lenawee Co., MI, but George Boulton, born in 1832, was born 
in Orleans Co., New York.  Also, that Nancy Boulton (Haynor) b. 1835, 
was  

1 Lincolnshire is about 140 miles from London. Binfield, Berkshire, England, 

where William J. Boulton’s siblings were born is on the outskirts of London, 

about 40 miles away. This author wonders if the author’s grandmother, Mary 

Elizabeth Haynor meant Berkshire rather than Lincolnshire? 

2 It has not been proven that Barney Kelly (Kelley) was ever a bodyguard 

(known as a lifeguard back then) to George Washington, although most lifeguard 

records were lost in a fire in the early 1800s. About 75% of the known lifeguards 

have been recovered through other sources, with the best comprehensive list this 

author has found is at http://genealogytrails.com/main/military/eliteguards.html, 

which includes a brief history of the lifeguards. If Barney was 6’2” tall as Mary 

Elizabeth Haynor described him, Barney may have been a body double, rather 

than a bodyguard. If so, with General Washington being so secretive regarding 

spies, informers, etc., we may never know if our Barney was a body double. It’s 

possible too, that it wasn’t William James Boulton’s father-in-law Barney who 

was a bodyguard or body double, but it was Barney’s father-in-law William 

Hunter who was the bodyguard, since a William Hunter was found to be an 

actual bodyguard of General Washington in the source above, and we know that 

Barney was married to a Nancy Hunter, if in fact this Nancy is a daughter of this 

William. 

3 Although William and Nancy moved to Lenawee County, Michigan, it 

probably was not as early as 1825 (although Mary Elizabeth (Conner) Haynor, 

might have meant to write 1835), since son George was born in Orleans County, 

NY, in 1832, but daughter Nancy was born in Lenawee County in 1835. William 

and Nancy did move from NY State to Palmyra, MI. But this author can find no 

records of William and Nancy moving specifically from Palmyra, NY to Palmyra, 

MI or of William’s naming the Michigan village Palmyra. See the following 

websites for more information, 

http://genealogytrails.com/mich/lenawee/twppalmyra.html and 

https://wayne.nygenweb.net/palmyra/palmyrami.html. Interesting too, since 

William’s son George was born in Orleans Co., in 1832, Palmyra, NY is in 

Wayne County, NY not Orleans Co., NY. And since William’s Naturalization 

information was identified in 1833 in Orleans County, William himself stated in 

1833, that he had lived in Orleans County, for the past 17 years. 

4 William J. Boulton actually died 21 April 1885. 

Notes: It’s quite possible knowing that our William, in America in 1811, and if he 

did serve four years in the Royal Navy, was impressed into service about 1807. If 

It's believed Esther and James had three children: 
 

 William Jones, b. April 1839, Binfield, Berkshire, 
England, d. 20 February 1914, Kings, New York. At 
https://forum.familyhistory.uk.com/threads/boulton-
family-in-berkshire.14993/, says that this William came 
alone to Australia in 1863-64, age 25, on the Sirocco. He 
was on the first 'Sirocco' sailing, departing Plymouth 5 
November 1863 and arrived at Sydney (in quarantine) 28 
January 1864, from Wokingham, Berkshire, England. 
His name was listed as William Boulton on the ship’s 
manifest under single men. Why he was listed as a 
Boulton, rather than a Jones, is unknown to the authors. 
It’s possible that Thomas Boulton who arrived on 22 
January 1857, on the Matoaka, might have obtained 
cheaper fair, listing William as a Boulton, rather than a 
Jones. It’s possible too, that William was born before 
Esther and James were married, therefore, born a 
Boulton. But in the British Isles Census of 1851, at 
https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:SG8P-
ZKS, William is listed as William Jones, a son of James 
Jones, age 12, born in or near 1839. Immigration 
records have William Boulton arriving also on 9 June 
1869, 7 November 1871 and 4 December 1872. He was a 
cook/steward on a number of ships. He departed 
England 14 May 1902 to New York where he died at age 
74 on 20 February 1914. He does not appear to have 
married. 

 

 Thomas Williams Jones, b. 1842, England, d. abt. 1909, 

Comboyne New South Wales, Australia. He is listed at 

http://marinersandships.com.au/1864/01/090sir.htm, age 

22, as a seaman on the Sirocco, 28 January 1864. He 

traveled to Australia on the same ship that his older 

brother William Boulton (Jones) did, who was age 25, 

listed as a single man. It’s unknown if Thomas William 

Jones ever married. 
 

 Emma Jones, b. 24 

December 1846, Binfield, 

Berkshire, England. D. 31 

July 1920, Paddington NSW 

Australia. It’s believed that 

Emma (Emily) had one 

child; Clelia Maud Mary 

Jones (1873–1952) and two 

husbands; Thomas De 

LaMont (unknown-1873) 

and Joseph Petherbridge 

(1850-1908). It’s unknown if 

 Mr. De LaMont or Mr. Petherbridge was the father of 

Clelia Maud Mary Jones. 
 

 

 

 
Lucius and Ella Boulton about 1902 

 

Emma Jones 
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so, he would have been around 11 years old at that time. And during the War of 

1812-15, William would have been between 16 and 19 years of age. Likely, he 

never saw his parents or any of his siblings again, unless some of his siblings 

found their way to America. 

Two land grants were found in Lenawee County, MI for a Thomas Boulton in 

9/10/1834 and for George Boulton in 10/6/1835, may have been relatives of our 

William, therefore the reason he and family moved from NY State to Michigan. 

x. Sarah Bolton, b. abt. 1818, Willesden, London, England, d. 
30 April 1910, Swaffham, Norfolk, England. She married 
James Phillip Wicks, 19 August 1839, Willesden, Middlesex, 
England. James, b. 26 September 1811, Edgeware, 
Middlesex, England, d. 20 April 1895, Swaffham, Norfolk, 
England.  It’s believed they had the following children: 

 Mary Ann Wicks, b. abt. 1843, Hampstead, Middlesex, 
England, d. Unknown.. 
 

 Jonathan Wicks, b. abt. 1845, Igborough, Norfolk, 
England, d. October 1913, Swaffham, Norfolk, England. 

 

 George Wix, b. abt. 1845, Igborough, Norfolk, England, 
d. September 1927, Swaffham, Norfolk, England. 

 

 Eliza Ann Wicks, b. abt. 1845 Hampstead, Middlesex, 
England, d. 16 September 1928, Isleworth, Middlesex, 
England. Married Joseph Tibbles (1843–1930), 25 
December 1865, St Mary, Willesden, England. It’s 
believed they had the following children: 
- Walter Sydney Tibbles, b. 1868, d. Unknown. 
- Emily Eliza Tibbles, b. 1872, d. Unknown. 
- Emily Eliza Tibbles, b. 1872, d. 1958. 
- Frederick Harry Tibbles, b. 1873, d. 1963. 
- Frederick Harry Tibbles, b. 1874, d. 1963. 
- Minnie Blanche Tibbles, b. 1878, d. 1961. 
- Joseph Rober Tibbles t, b. 1880, d. 1950. 

 

 Henry S. Wicks, b. 1848, Hampstead, Middlesex, 

England, d. Unknown. Married Hannah M. It’s believed 

they had the following children: 

- Ann Jane Wicks, b. 1878, d. Unknown 

- John Wicks, b. 1882, d. Unknown 

- Beatrice Wicks, b. 1885, d. Unknown 

- Joseph Wicks, b. 1888, d. Unknown 

- Frank Wicks, b. 1893, d. Unknown 

- Jane Ruth Wicks, b. 1897, d. Unknown 
 

 Morris Wicks, b. September 1849, Igbrough, Norfolk, 

England, d. December 1853. 
 

 Charlotte Reynolds Wicks, b. abt. 1850, Hamstead, 

Middlesex, England, d. Unknown. Married Henry John 

Wicks, 24 December 1876, All Saints Church, 

Newington, surrey, England. Henry, b. 26 April 1857, 

Bermondsey, Surrey, England, d. June 1929, Edmonton, 

Middlesex, England. They had one child: 

- Charlotte Wick (1878-1966) 

- Emily Older (Unknown-Unknown) 

 Fretham James Wicks, b. December 1853, Igbrough, 

Norfolk, England, d. Unknown. 

 Darious Wicks, b. 1859, Igbrough, Norfolk, England, d. 

October 1904, Thetford, Norfolk, England. 

 Robert Huddlestone Wicks, (Unknown-Unknown) 
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3rd Great Grandparents 

Abraham William Bolton 

BIRTH AND/OR CHRISTENED 19 June 1773 • Binfield, Berkshire, England 

DEATH 7 April 1847 • Binfield, Berkshire, England. 

Burial Easthampstead Workhouse, parish of Binfield, Berkshire, England. 

Spouse: 

Charlotte Stocker 

BIRTH ABT 1775 • Willesden, London, England 

DEATH 12 April 1855 • Easthampstead Workhouse, parish of Binfield, Berkshire, England. 

Burial April 1855, All Saints Church, Binfield, Berkshire, England 

Charlotte Stocker was born abt. 1775 in Willesden, London, England. Burial April 1855 in All Saints Church, Binfield, Berkshire, England.  She 

died on 12 Apr 1855 in Easthampstead Workhouse, from the parish of Binfield, Berkshire, England.  It’s unknown who Charlotte Stocker’s parents 

were.  

Charlotte Bolton and son Thomas Bolton and his family were listed in the England and Wales Censuses of 1841 and 1851. 

Abraham Bolton, bachelor, and Charlotte Stocker, spinster, both of the parish of Willesden, in the  

County of Middlesex, were married by Banns1 first published on the following Sundays, viz. (as follows): February 21st, February 28th, and 

March 6th in the year of our Lord one thousand seven hundred and ninety-sixty, this twenty-ninth day of May 1796, by me, John Wane, Curate; in 

the presence of Ann Stocker (her mark) 2 and Jeremiah Barr; both bride & groom made their mark. 

Source: Margaret Escott, "Charity and Poverty in Binfield, Berkshire 1775-1875,” unpublished paper presented to the 10th International 

Economic Conference, Belgium 1990. She also sites, “The solidarities of strangers: the English poor laws and the people, 1700-1948.” 

Weekly Doles: Communal Support, also in the book of Charities-Local Householders, had the right to payments from a variety of local funds. 

There was a mention of Grants of 1 pound went to Abraham Bolton, a very industrious labourer & sober man with a family of five children. 

1 Wedding banns publicly announce two people's intention to marry. They must be read in the parish church, as well as in the church where the ceremony is to 

take place. Traditionally, this reading of the banns gave other parishioners the chance to raise objections to a wedding. 

2 It’s unknown who Ann Stocker was. But it’s likely she was Charlotte’s sister or mother. 

The 1801 census recorded 808 inhabitants, 1821 found 1057, and by 1841 this had only grown to 1242. 

1801 Census Abraham listed as living at number 27 Binfield. 

BOLTON Abraham and Charlotte  

William age 4, Ann age 1-1/2 

In 1815 Abraham listed as labourer on daughter Mary’s birth christening. 

England and Wales Census, 1841, at https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:MQRQ-LZ5, 

Household of Charlotte Bolton, Binfield, Berkshire, England, United Kingdom; from "1841 England, Scotland and Wales census," database and 

images, findmypast (http://www.findmypast.com : n.d.); citing PRO HO 107, The National Archives, Kew, Surrey. Event Date 1841. Event Place 

Binfield, Berkshire, England, United Kingdom. Registration District: Easthampstead. Residence Redrose. 

People on This Census Record 

Charlotte Bolton, female, age 60 Berkshire. Wife of Abraham William Bolton. 

Thomas Bolton, male, age 27, Berkshire. Son of Abraham and Charlotte. 

Elenor (Eliza) Bolton, female, age 22, Berkshire. Wife of Thomas Bolton. 

Mary Ann Bolton, female, age 20, Berkshire, Daughter of Abraham and Charlotte. 

William Bolton, male, age 2, Berkshire. Son of Thomas and Elenor (Eliza) 

Rosannah Bolton, female, age 2, Berkshire, Daughter of Thomas and Elenor (Eliza) 

Abraham Bolton, male, age 0, Berkshire, Son of Thomas and Elenor (Eliza) 

Note: Abraham William Bolton, male, father, born or christened, 19 June 1773, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. 7 April 1847, Binfield, Berkshire, England, for 

some reason, was not listed in the above census with Charlotte and their children. Interestingly, an Abraham Bolton, age 65, was living at a separate residence 
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with James Baker, age 80 and his wife Elizabeth Baker, age 75, Binfield, Berkshire, England, United Kingdom. It’s  possible that Abraham was under the employ 

of Mr. Baker or had a separate residence as a landlord, since the residence where his wife Charlotte was living, was listed as “Household of Charlotte Bolton.” 

It’s believed that Abraham Bolton and Charlotte had the following children: 

i. William James Bolton/Boulton, b. 20 June 1796, St. Mary, St. Marylebone Road, Marylebone, London, England. Christened, 31 August 

1796 in St. Mary, St. Marylebone Road, Marylebone, London, England, d. 21 April 1885, Easton Twp., Ionia Co., Michigan. See detail on 

William James Boulton on page 6. 
 

ii. Ann Bolton, b. abt. 1799, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. unknown. 
 
 

iii. Nancy Bolton, b. 20 October 1799, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. abt. 1801. 

 Note: It’s possible that Ann Bolton, immediately from above and Nancy Bolton are the same person since there’s very little information available on 

 either of them. They could also be twins, who died in infancy. 

iv. Charlotte Bolton, birth/christened 31 July 1803, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. 1805, Binfield, Berkshire, England. 
 

v. Charles Bolton, birth/christened 2 February 1806, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. abt. 1893. Charles married Olive Taylor, 11 October 

1827, Binfield, Berkshire, England. She was born about 1809. In the 1881 Census, Charles & Olive were living at Talbots Cottages, 

Datchet (St. Mary) Buckinghamshire, England with a lodger by the name of Mary Hook. It appears they had four children: 
 

 Charlotte Bolton. Christened 7 June 1829, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. 20 September 1909, Greenwich, London, England. 

Charlotte married William Maslin (1827-1876), January 1848 Windsor, Berkshire, England. Together they had eight children as 

follows: 

- John William Maslin (1848–1914), 

- Henry Maslin (1850–1914), 

- Frederick Maslin (1853–1879), 

- Charles Maslin (1855-Unknown), 

- Charlotte Louisa Maslin (1857–1927), 

- Elizabeth Maslin (1862-Unknown), 

- William Alfred Maslin (1869-Unknown) 

- George Maslin (1873-Unknown). 

 Note: It appears upon the death of William Maslin, Charlotte married Charles Maidment (1832-Unknown), in 1884 Eton, Buckinghamshire, England. 

 Charles William Bolton. Christened 22 May 1831, Binfield, Berkshire England, d. Unknown. 

 Matilda Bolton, christened 22 May 1836, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. Unknown. 

 Frederick Bolton, b. 1837, Maidenhead, Berkshire, England, d. July 1913, Devonshire, England. 

vi. Abraham Boulton, christened 11 September 1808, Peasemore, Berkshire, England, d. 23 August 1853, Mahaska County, Iowa. Married 

Martha Goodchild, b. 25 December 1814, England, d. 9 April 1900, Mahaska County, Iowa. Emigrated to the U.S., about 1837. Abraham 

buried 1853, Bedwell Cemetery, Mahaska County, Iowa. This Abraham Bolton/Boulton, might be misplaced, since this Abraham was 

apparently the son of Thomas Bolton, as stated at http://sites.rootsweb.com/~burfordwoodley/6482.htm, not Abraham Bolton and 

Charlotte. 
 

vii. Joel Bolton, birth/christened, 28 August 1808, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. unknown. 

 Note: There was a Joel Boulton listed in the 1841 England and Wales Census, age 34, born about 1807, Gloucestershire, England, but he may not have 

 been a descendant of Abraham Bolton and wife Charlotte. Also, there was a Joel Boulton found at a gravesite (1806-1857) in Australia at 

 https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/123531363/joel-boulton. It’s unknown if this is the son of Abraham Bolton and wife Charlotte. 
 

viii. John Thomas Boulton, b. 29 December 1811, Binfield, Berkshire, England, d. 14 January 1896, Bay Road, North Sydney, NSW, Australia. 

Burial, 16 January 1896, St. Thomas Rest Park, Crows Nest, North Sydney Council, New South Wales, Australia. Thomas married Eliza 

Finbow, 25 August 1839, Warfield, Berkshire, England. Eliza, b. 17 September 1820, Docking, Norfolk, England, d. 19 September 1901, 

Dapto, New south Wales, Australia. Eliza Finbow is believed to be the daughter of William Finbow and Mary Kemp. It appears that John 

Thomas Boulton, went by the name of Thomas Boulton. (See detail on John Thomas Boulton and family on page 6. 
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4th Great Grandparents 

Abraham Boulton 

BIRTH/BAPTISM 28 March 1747 • Ulverston St Mary, Lancashire, England  

DEATH 12 December 1800 • St Luke's Hospital, Wokingham Berkshire, England 

Spouse: 

Mary (Sumner) Milton  

BIRTH ABT 1742 • Warfield, Berkshire, England 

DEATH ABT June 1824 • Binfield, Berkshire, England 

Mary Milton nee Sumner (maiden name) was believed born between 1736-1742, Berkshire, England. It’s believed that Abraham Bolton and Mary 

Milton were married 12 October 1767, Warfield, Berkshire, England, as shown at https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:NK1V-K3V. 

Mary was a widow when she married Abraham. Her first marriage was possibly to Joseph Milton, 19 June 1755, Warfield, Berkshire, as shown at 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:J882-M4M. It’s believed that Joseph Milton was christened, 31 May 1727, Warfield, Berkshire, 

England at https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:J7MQ-VQL and died in 1764, since a Joseph Milton was found buried 25 August 1764, 

Warfield, Berkshire, England at https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:J882-M4M. 

Bolton/Boulton Family Binfield, Warfield (Warfield and Binfield are about two miles apart) 

Researching Bolton family from about 1767, Abraham Bolton married Mary Milton nee Sumner, Warfield 1767. Their children: William married 

Trundal; Mary married Bartholomew; Abraham married Stocker, see above; Elizabeth married Aldridge; Benjamin married Milom; Hester; and 

Thomas married Dowling. 

Children of Abraham Boulton (1747-1800) and Mary (1742-1824): 

i. William Bolton, christened, 7 May 1768, Warfield, Berkshire, England, d. unknown. Married Mary Trundall, 19 December 1787, 

Binfield, Berkshire, England. Her birth and death dates are unknown. It’s believed they had at least two children as follows: 
 

ii. William Bolton, christened, 3 May 1788, d. unknown, 
 

iii. James Bolton, christened, 31 May 1789, d. unknown. James married 26 October 1807, Clewer, Berkshire, England, to Anne Friday, 

March 25, 2022, who was born 26 October 1789, Bray, Berkshire, England, d. December 1869, Berkshire, England. Together they had 

the following children: 
 

 William, b. 1820, 
 

 Esther, b. 1821, 
 

 Elizabeth Ellen, b. 1824, 
 

 Lucy, b. 1826, 
 

 Thomas, b. 1828, 
 

 Christopher, b. 1830, 
 

 Ann Maria, b. 1832, and 
 

 James, b. 1835. 
 

iv. Mary Bolton, b. 20 May 1770, d. 1801. Married James Bartholomew, 29 November 1794, Binfield, Berkshire, England. James b. 1771. d. 

1843, Hungerford, Berkshire, England. 
 

v. Abraham Boulton (1773 - 1847) see above. 
 

vi. Elizabeth Bolton, b. 7 October 1775, Binfield, Berkshire, England. Christened 7 October 1775, Binfield, Berkshire England, d. 1801, 

Binfield, Berkshire, England. The marriage of Thomas Aldridge, christened 14 December 1771, d. abt. 1852 and Elizabeth Bolton took 

place, 28 October 1797. Thomas Aldridge was the son of Thomas Aldridge and Jane Butler. 1801 Census, Thomas Aldrich, son of a 

widow of Oakingham, Elizabeth Bolton, his wife after she died, Thomas and children, William Aldrich aged 3 and John Aldrich aged 2, 

removed to Thomas’ mother. Another entry in the 1801 census is for Thomas' mother Aldrich widow of Oakingham, Elizabeth aged 34 - 

out, Sarah aged 32 - out, Thomas age 30 - married, William age 25 - out, James age 21 - ran away for stealing cooper's geese, Jane age 

19, Ann age 17, and Catherine age 11. 
 

 



©  27 

 

vii. Benjamin Bolton b. October 1777, Binfield, Berkshire, England. Christened 26 October 1777, Binfield, Berkshire, England. He died 

March 1851, Binfield, Berkshire, England. Burial 16 March 1851, All Saints Church, Binfield, Berkshire. Benjamin Bolton and Mary 

Milom were married 19 January 1799, Binfield, Berkshire, England. They had 5 children as follows: 

 John Bolton. b. Feb 1799, Binfield, Berkshire England. Christening 3 March 1799, Binfield, Berkshire, England. 
 

 James Bolton. b. 1801. 
 

 Elizabeth Bolton. b. September 1804, Binfield, Berkshire, England. Christening 30 September 1804, Binfield, Berkshire England. 
 

 Benjamin Bolton. b. August 1809, Binfield, Berkshire England. Christened 19 August 1809, Binfield, Berkshire England. He died 

May 1888 in Binfield, Berkshire, England. Burial on 24 May 1888, All Saints, Binfield, Berkshire, England. 
 

 William Bolton. b. March 1813, Binfield, Berkshire, England. Christened 16 March 1813, Binfield, Berkshire England. 
 

viii. Thomas Bolton, b. April 1782, Binfield, Berkshire, England. Christened 21 April 1782, Binfield, Berkshire, England. He died January 

1813, Binfield, Berkshire, England. Burial 3 January 1813. Thomas Bolton and Ann Dowling were married 3 November 1804, Binfield, 

Berkshire, England. Ann Dowling was the daughter of Henry Dowling and Mary Wheeler. She was born February 1786 in Binfield, 

Berkshire, England and baptized, 12 February 1786. Thomas and Ann had one child. 

 Henry Bolton, b. March 1805, Binfield, Berkshire, England. Christened on 31 March 1805, Binfield, Berkshire England. 

At https://www.familysearch.org/tree/pedigree/landscape/G9JR-JJX, shows the father of Abraham Bolton, born between 1744-50, as Abraham 

Bolton, born near 1720, died 1764. Below is the information on this Abraham Bolton, this author has found, that meets this criterion. 

In the paper, “Charity and poverty in Binfield, Berkshire 1775-1875: A Study of ‘Industry’, ‘Desert’ and Social Deference,” Social History Society 

Conference, Trinity College Dublin, January 2005. This is an updated and supersedes a similarly titled paper for 10th International Economic 

History Conference at the University of Louvain (1990), by Margaret Escott, University of Reading, History, Visiting Research Fellow. This author 

found our Bolton ancestry mentioned through both Abraham born 1747 and his son born 1773. Here are some excerpts from that paper that 

applies to our Bolton family, especially as it applies to poverty during that time period: 

 Page 8 – “Most charity donations were paid out in cash to non-paupers when tithes were collected on St. Thomas’s Day, with eligible persons benefiting 

every two or three years. However, records show that sums were also set aside, or requested at short notice from likely benefactors, ‘for such accidental calls 

as sickness or other calamity may point out’ to try to ensure that a particular family or individual was not pauperized through a chance stroke of bad fortune. 

Thus, when Abraham Bolton’s son (b. 1773, d. 1847) lost a guinea in 1783, his father (b. 1747, d. 1800) received 10 shillings and sixpence from Lord Suffolk 

and the same from the rector as extraordinary charity donations.” 
 

 Page 11 – “Desert (abandoned, shunned or neglected) as could be readily accrued if an individual or family was known and approved of by parish 

authorities, but those not considered especially deserving received commensurate relief, provided the overseers confirmed their eligibility. The policy of 

making payments when tithes were collected, itself deterred at least one potential recipient (Thomas Aldrich, husband of Elizabeth Bolton, b. 1775); while 

evidence that parish patronage was sometimes resented comes from Abraham Bolton’s (b. 1747, d. 1800) ‘damning of the gifts’ before the churchwardens; 

the decision of the wives of John Sargent and William Vickery to collect their guineas unbeknown to their husbands65; and a concerted but abortive attempt to 

widen access to the office of rate collector in 1801.” 
 

 Pages 17-18 – “A glimpse of how families who remained in observation coped with the transition from an informal ‘juggle of resources’ to a system 

dominated by conscious applications for reward and concomitant invitations to have their behaviour monitored is offered in the following case studies: one of 

the Boltons, admired by Wilson for their independence and ‘industry’; and one of the Dowlings, ‘Poor Labourers’. Abraham Bolton’s (b. 1747, d. 1800) 

descendants remained independent of parish relief throughout. His widow died aged eighty-two in 1824, outliving Abraham by twenty-nine years. She paid 

her taxes, collected charity doles, apparently kept a grandchild in residence and passed on the partly owned/partly rented smallholding built up by her 

husband to her son Benjamin. Family fortunes were blighted by many early deaths including the loss of two daughters early in their married lives but their 

surviving offspring and those of her married sons remained in the parish. Family births and deaths were frequent. Benjamin and Abraham Bolton Jnr. (b. 

1773, d. 1847) both sought charity assistance. In 1824, Abraham was the first recorded applicant to be refused admission to Bowes’s Batson’s and Wilson’s 

charity. He was then forty-nine, married, and lived in a tied cottage (a dwelling owned by an employer that is rented to an employee: if the employee leaves 

their job, they may have to vacate the property; in this way the employee is tied to their employer). His children were between twelve and twenty-eight years 

old. He died in 1847 aged seventy-four. His brother Benjamin, who when widowed returned home to live with his mother, received twenty-seven shillings 

triennially from the charity and was never ‘warned’. Benjamin’s sons, James, John and Benjamin Jnr. were each admitted to the Charity in turn and also had 

their requests for places at the Charity School for their children granted. However, the trustees reprimanded James formally in 1841 and thereafter his name 

disappeared from the lists. Benjamin Jnr and John’s widow Caroline, a needlewoman with a daughter of nineteen, are both listed in the 1871 Census but not 

the Charity lists. Benjamin, a widowed farmer and cowman, and his unmarried daughter, then kept the family smallholding.” 
 

 Page – 29 “65The rector responded sympathetically. Bolton subsequently occupied Binfield’s place (bed) at St Luke’s hospice in Wokingham. Payments to his 

family, who remained independent of poor relief continued. BRO D/P18/25/3.” 
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5th Great Grandparents 

Abraham Boulton 

BIRTH ABT 1718 • Tottenham, Bedfordshire, England 

DEATH 19 October 1764 • King Street, Ulverston, Cumberland, England 

Spouse: 

Ann Philipson 

BIRTH ABT 1720 • Ulverston, Lancashire, England 

DEATH Unknown 

It is believed that Abraham Bolton/Boulton and Ann Philipson were married, 25 June 1739, St Mary, Dalton in Furness, Lancashire, England. See 

https://www.geni.com/people/Ann-Philipson-Boulton/6000000063302013872. Also see, https://www.geni.com/people/Abraham-

Boulton/6000000063301867958, https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:NXVH-6JW, 

https://www.familysearch.org/tree/person/details/KHMQ-PSX, and http://rslc.org.uk/api/file/Vol_100.pdf.  

At the website above at https://www.geni.com/people/Abraham-Boulton/6000000063301867958, it says that “his paternal ancestors spelled their 

name Boulton.” 

•  Occupation: Apprenticed to an apothecary, George Smith, in Skipton, Yorkshire. 12 MAY 1731 – 1736 

•  Occupation: Apothecary (surgeon) in Ulverston, Cumberland. 
 

At https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:WYY1-LNN2 and http://rslc.org.uk/api/file/Vol_100.pdf, says that this Abraham Boulton was a 

doctor. The medical term apothecary, apparently now means a pharmacist.  
 

An Abraham Boulton was listed as the master to apprentice John Addison on 26 August 1755. Residence location was Ulverston, Lancaster. 

According to “The National Archives of the UK (TNA); Kew, Surrey, England; Collection: Board of Stamps: Apprenticeship Books: Series IR 1; 

Class: IR 1; Piece: 20.” These are registers of the money received for the payment on taxes for an apprentice’s indenture between 1710-1811. The 

records include sum received, name, address, and trade of master, name of apprentice, dates of articles of apprenticeship, and names of 

apprentice’s parents.  

Children of Abraham Bolton (1718-1764) and Ann Philipson (1720-Unknown): 

i. Mary, b. 1740, Ulverston, Lancaster, England, d. 1741, Dalton in Furness, Lancashire, England. 
 

ii. Elizabeth, b. 1742, Ulverston, Lancashire, England, d. 1771, Ulverston, Lancashire, England. Married John Clark, 17 November 1759, 

Ulverston, Lancashire, England. John b. 1837, d. Unknown. They had one child: 
 

 Elizabeth, b. 1764, Swaffham, Norfolk, England, d. 1809, Stokesby, Norfolk, England. 
 

 

iii. Mary, b. 1744, Ulverston, Lancashire, England, d. 1 May 1806, Ulverston, Lancashire, England. Married Robert Thwaits, 15 May 1767, 

Lancashire, England. Robert, b. 1734, Ulverston, Lancashire, England, d. 16 November 1793, Liverpool, Lancashire, England. Together 

they had the following children: 
 

 Elizabeth, b. 1771, 
 

 Ann, b. 1774, 
 

 Eleanor, b. 1777, d. 1857, 
 

 Mary, b. 1778, d. 1780, and 
 

 John, b. 1782, d. 1821. 
 

iv. Abraham (1747-1800), see above. 
 

v. Ann, b. 1752, Ulverston, Lancashire, England, d. Unknown. 
 

vi. John, b. 22 March 1756, Ulverston, South Lakeland District, Cumbria, England, d. 21 February 1837, Liverpool, Metropolitan Borough 

of Liverpool, Merseyside, England. Married Elizabeth Littledale, Abt. 1789, Tottenham, Bedfordshire, England. Elizabeth, b. 19 

November 1768, Whitehaven, Cumbria, England, d. 22 September 1848, Storrs Hall, Lake District, Cumbria, England. It’s believed they 

never had any children. Both are buried at https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/70936057/john-bolton.  
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Note: At https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Storrs_Hall, says that “Storrs Hall is a hotel on the banks of Windermere in Storrs in the Lake District, Cumbria, 

England. The hotel, a Grade II listed Georgian mansion, is also home to the National Trust-owned folly the "Temple" on the end of a stone jetty on 

Windermere. Situated in the Lake District, Storrs Hall sits alongside the Windermere. It stands in seventeen acres of grounds and woodland. 
 

The mansion was first built in the 1790s by Sir John Legard, a Yorkshire landowner. After 14 years of owning the building, Sir John Legard became 

increasingly crippled by gout, and eventually sold Storrs Hall in 1804. 

The new owner of Storrs Hall was John Bolton, born in Ulverston in 1756, who was a rich man and one of the wealthiest men of his class. He extended 

the mansion and created a park. John Bolton was a Cumbrian who made a fortune as a Liverpool slave trader. He bought Storrs Hall with some of the 

proceeds and used the residence to entertain in style, holding regattas on the lake which were attended by Wordsworth and Sir Walter Scott amongst 

others. 
 

Elizabeth Bolton died in 1848 and the hall passed to her nephew Reverend Thomas Staniforth. Thomas was the son of former Lord Mayor of 

London Samuel Staniforth and grandson of Thomas Staniforth, also former mayor and slave trader. Staniforth moved into the hall in 1859 after retiring 

from his parish and lived there until he passed in 1887. As he never had any children the estate was sold off in lots.  
 

Between 1940 and 1944, Storrs Hall (which had previously been used both as a girls' school and as a youth hostel) played host to the staff and boys 

of St Hugh's School, Woodhall Spa, who were evacuated from their own buildings amidst the airfields of Lincolnshire during World War II. 
 

Today, Storrs Hall is a 4-star hotel. 

 

vii. Sarah, b. 1758, Ulverston, Lancashire, England, d. Aft. 1837. At https://www.geni.com/people/Sarah-

Smith/6000000061945228834?through=6000000063301867958, says that Sarah married James Smith on 15 Sep 1793 St Anne 

Richmond, Liverpool, Lancashire, England. Also, at https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:NK2G-B5Y. Nothing else is known 

about James Smith or Sarah Bolton. 

Possible 6th Great Grandparents 

Abraham Boulton 

BIRTH ABT 1700 • Unknown 

DEATH • Unknown 

Spouse: 

Elizabeth Smith? 

BIRTH • Unknown 

DEATH • Unknown 

See https://www.familysearch.org/tree/person/details/G6QL-2FP 
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